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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be attached.
In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future
profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business
sectors or countries in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile
and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly,
prospective investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information
on GEM-listed issuers.
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The Phoenix
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This year has been pivotal in shaping the future of Phoenix,
with strategic moves that have strengthened channel
and programming line-ups and expanded distribution
networks to reach key Chinese markets worldwide.

Vital for delivering long-term results, these developments
illustrate the company’s focus on goals, balanced approach
and vision to make Phoenix the ‘Chinese connection’
for Chinese people around the world.
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Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. (The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as “Phoenix” or the “Group”).

Phoenix began broadcasting Phoenix Chinese Channel on 31 March 1996, aiming to offer a great variety of superior content to
the 1.3 billion global Chinese population. This massive market, combined with successful expansion strategies, has allowed
Phoenix to develop a comprehensive multi-channel platform. Today, Phoenix Chinese, Phoenix Movies, Phoenix InfoNews,
Phoenix CNE and Phoenix North America Chinese channels together deliver content to audiences in more than 30 countries
and regions across Asia Pacific, Europe and North America.
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HIGHLIGHTS

+ Turnover up 39.6% to approximately $713,687,000

+ A significant increase in revenue for Phoenix’s flagship Chinese Channel,
fromHK$490,437,000 to HK$670,569,000 approximately, up 36.7%

+ Consolidated profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended
June 30, 2001 was approximately HK$53,984,000, an increase of 7.3%
from last financial year

+ The successful launches of Phoenix InfoNews and North America
Chinese channels

+ China’s relaxation of tax-deductible limits of advertising expenditure from
2% to 8%, alleviating concerns regarding growth of advertising expenditure
in the coming financial year

Year 2000-2001 marked the first full financial year for the Company after
listing. The Directors of the Group are pleased to report the launch of the
various new channels as planned, as well as the establishment of alliances
with major news suppliers. With the launch of Phoenix North America
Chinese Channel, we are now closer to positioning our brand-name globally
and to providing entertainment and news to the Chinese-speaking audience
around the world.

We have made an excellent start this year. We will maintain our strategic
focus and concentrate our efforts on our audience, to ensure that the new
channels will be as successful as our Phoenix Chinese Channel.

RESULTS

Turnover for the year ended June 30, 2001 was approximately HK$713,687,000,
an increase of 39.6% from last year, which was attributable mainly to the
increase in advertising revenue.

Advertising revenue grew by 38.9%, from HK$485,654,000 to HK$674,350,000
approximately. 98.2% of this revenue was contributed by Phoenix Chinese
Channel, which itself demonstrated a significant 36.7% increase in advertising
revenue, growing from HK$484,631,000 to HK$662,370,000 approximately.
Total revenue of Phoenix Chinese Channel increased from HK$490,437,000
to HK$670,569,000 approximately. As expected, revenues from the new
channels and other new businesses such as the web-site and the magazine
were relatively low, while staffing, programming and other operational costs
inevitably increased due to the establishment of these new channels and
businesses. In addition, the expansion from being a single company to
becoming a conglomerate of over twenty companies triggered a 26.4%
increase in management overheads.
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Phoenix Chinese Channel
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The table below shows the comparison of operating profit (loss) of our
businesses for the financial years ended June 30, 2000 and 2001, respectively:

OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) BY BUSINESS
BEBWME oz LN (EH)

Phoenix Chinese & Movies channels  JEUS 5 o3& KBS HER &
Phoenix InfoNews &
North America Chinese channels

BRI A BB SE U &

Other businesses FHoAt 275
Management overheads AT
Profit (Loss) from operations KA (E18)

Audited consolidated profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended
June 30, 2001 was approximately HK$53,984,000, an increase of 7.3% from
last financial year.

Earnings per share was recorded at HK1.10 cents.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend a dividend payment, in order to allow for
cash for future business development.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Television Broadcasting

In 2001, the Group focused its efforts on launching new channels and
improving programming on all Phoenix channels. We have made significant
strides in both securing and producing top-rated programmes, and we are
pleased to note recent gains in audience and ranking as well.

The quality of programming was raised significantly during the period by
a number of self-productions such as European Odyssey and Green Wall in
China. We featured a number of high-quality Chinese and Hollywood
movies, along with awards shows such as the 73rd Annual Academy Awards.
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The Channels

Phoenix Chinese Channel

Phoenix Chinese Channel continues to be the flagship channel for the Group.
94.0% of the Group’s revenue was contributed by this channel. Our continued
effort to improve programming was recognized in a nationwide TV audience
survey conducted by China Central Television (“CCTV”).

In the CCTV-commissioned survey for the first quarter of 2001, covering
44 local and foreign satellite channels which can be seen in the PRC, Phoenix
Chinese Channel was ranked fifth in terms of audience satisfaction and
popularity, and sixth in terms of programme competitiveness and degree
of audience expectation. We are pleased to note that our rankings in these
areas have improved in the same survey for the second quarter of 2001.
Audience satisfaction and popularity advanced from fifth to third place.
Programme competitiveness and degree of audience expectation improved
from sixth to fourth and fifth, respectively. In both surveys, our loyalty rating
ranked second only to CCTV.

Phoenix Movies Channel

Revenue from the Phoenix Movies Channel increased by 36.8% for the 12
months ended June 30, 2001. This shows that our audience is very supportive
of our high quality movies and our efforts at promoting the channel.

Phoenix Movies Channel proudly celebrated its 3rd Anniversary in August
2001 with the showing of the widely-acclaimed Crouching Tiger, Hidden
Dragon, the movie that hit box office records for Chinese movies and swept
numerous awards including the Oscar®. This generated notable interest for
title sponsorship among advertisers.

Phoenix InfoNews Channel

Launched in January 2001, Phoenix InfoNews is the first foreign satellite
channel to deliver news and financial information 24 hours a day in Putonghua
to most Asian countries. We have acquired news sources from various
suppliers, notably securing a service agreement with Fox News Network
L.L.C. to provide global news to the Group. The channel continues to expand
its news coverage globally through establishing news bureaux around the
world. Phoenix InfoNews Channel will be carried by cable TV network in
Hong Kong in early 2002 and this will significantly increase its stature in

the area.
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Phoenix Chinese News and Entertainment Channel (“Phoenix CNE Channel”)

Phoenix CNE Channel has extended its daily broadcast time to 8 hours, with Mandarin news and
Cantonese news coverage and a weekly magazine programme called PCNE Express accounting for
22% of the total content. The channel is constantly enhancing its news content and major events
coverage in Europe for the Group. We are looking at ways to further extend the channel’s service in
Europe, including the possible expansion of daily broadcast time to 24 hours in the near future to
increase advertising income.

Phoenix North America Chinese Channel

Phoenix North America Chinese Channel is another Phoenix channel targeting the overseas Chinese
audience. It broadcasts 24 hours a day, 7 days a week through DIRECTY, the largest direct satellite
television broadcasting platform in the United States. Relying on the strong content base of the Group’s
multiple-channel platform in Hong Kong, the channel packages the best of dynamic news, general
entertainment and other programming such as drama series, and variety and talk shows. The channel
has also launched “US News, a locally-produced news programme featuring US news, market reviews,
in-depth reports and live interviews on topics and issues concerning the Chinese community.

Shenzhen Production Centre

The Group produces tailor-made programmes for its own channels and also markets them to others.
As part of the effort to reduce programming costs, the Group has plans to establish a production centre
in Shenzhen. We have acquired a prime site in Shenzhen city centre and are now at the stage of soliciting
design proposals from architectural firms for the construction of a new production centre.

Internet Development

The Group continues to operate a corporate web-site at www.phoenixtv.com and the number of visitors
is increasing. The landscape in the technology and Internet arena is constantly shifting, however, with
business viability in this area being limited at this time. We will adjust our investment scale according
to changes in the circumstances and will explore areas that will complement and enhance our
core business.

Phoenix Weekly

This is a comprehensive magazine with permission to distribute in the PRC. The main focus of the
magazine is to cover television programmes and artistes appearing on the Group’s channels. It comprises
mainly three genres: current affairs and financial news, culture and lifestyle, and fashion and entertainment.
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PROSPECTS

Our focus continues to be on the Chinese community, which is the largest
in the world. This target group is still relatively unprovided for in terms of
quality programming and we believe there is significant potential to be
tapped. Phoenix Chinese Channel has achieved very satisfactory viewer
ratings, which attest to its popularity in the PRC. As mentioned, we will
concentrate our efforts on the new channels, as we believe the success of
the Phoenix Chinese Channel can be repeated.

We will continue to produce our own programmes and to secure high-
quality, popular shows and films from different sources so as to provide our
viewers with entertainment which will draw more advertising revenue.

China’s recent adjustment of tax-deductible limits of advertising expenditure
from 2% to 8% for certain sectors such as the pharmaceutical, food, health
protection products, household chemicals and information technology-
related industries, will alleviate concerns regarding advertising expenditures
of these PRC companies. The adjustment takes effect from January 2001
retrospectively. We have formed a marketing group to attract advertising
from high-tech companies, for which spending is fully tax deductible.

The competition between PRC television broadcasters has always been keen.
Although we have achieved high rankings in various aspects of the CCTV-
commissioned surveys, our viewership penetration rate is relatively low as
compared with the local channels. The opening up of the China market
coupled with the awarding of the 2008 Olympics to Beijing and China’s
accession to the WTO are expected to impact positively on our industry and
on our Group’s plans for growth.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank our staff for their endeavours
in raising and maintaining the standards of our productions and for their
efforts to produce the maximum return for the Group.

MEMORIAL

Our Deputy Head of Phoenix Chinese Channel and Deputy CEO of Phoenix
Film and Television (Shenzhen) Company Ltd, Mr Zhao Qun Li, died when
his mini-aircraft crashed on September 2, 2001 while filming our new series
Seeking the Lost Homeland in Wenzhou, PRC. Mr Zhao was known and
respected as the first aerial photographer in China, having created many
television series masterpieces such as Deng Xiao Ping and Green Wall in
China. He will be remembered for his many achievements and his spirit will
remain an inspiration for all of us.

Liu Changle
Chairman

Hong Kong, September 11, 2001
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LIU, Changle, aged 49, appointed on February 2, 2000, is the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. LIU
graduated from the Beijing Broadcasting Institute in the early 1980s
and joined China Central People’s Radio Station, with which he has
held over the years the positions of reporter, editor, news commentator
and senior management, and participated in the reporting and
commentary of a number of important national occasions and events.

Mr. LIU is a visiting professor of the Beijing Broadcasting Institute.

Mr. LIU’s PRC domestic and overseas investments include
broadcasting, petroleum, infrastructure construction, real estate

development, trading and cultural businesses.

On March 31, 1996, Mr. LIU, through Today’s Asia Limited, which is
93.3% owned by him, together with Satellite Television Asian Region
Limited and China Wise International Limited, jointly founded
Phoenix Satellite Television Company Limited (“Phoenix Satellite
TV”). He became and remains the Chairman of the Board and the

Chief Executive Officer of Phoenix.

In the January 2000 issue of the “Voices of China” monthly magazine,
Mr. LIU was selected as one of the top ten personalities of the “Voices
of China”.

In August 2000, #7 #7 [# J& ¥ of Taiwan, Ming Pao of Hong Kong and
Hong Kong Metro Broadcast Corporation Limited jointly held a survey
of “Power 50 Year 2000”. Mr. LIU ranked 78 among the 150 nominated

candidates from the Greater China region.

In December 2000, Mr. LIU was selected as “Intellect of the Media” in

the “Top Ten Pairs in Focus 2000” election organized by Chinanews

(9 B 8 M JE 1)) , operated by China News Services ( 5 [ [ #t)

In June 2001, Mr. LIU was ranked 17th of Asia’s most influential

communicators in “The Power 50 2001” survey organized by Asia Week.

Mr. LIU is one of the substantial shareholders of Asia Television
Limited (“ATV”) and a member of the International Board of the US

National Academy of Television Arts and Sciences.

Mr. CHUI, Keung, aged 49, appointed on June 5, 2000, is the Executive
Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr.
CHUI graduated from the department of journalism of Fudan
University in Shanghai and served in the China Central People’s Radio
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Station for over 10 years. Since the establishment of Phoenix on March
31, 1996, he has been in charge of the overall daily operations, the
public relations and promotion strategies of Phoenix, and the
coordination of the relationships with PRC government entities. He
also assists in establishing and implementing the corporate

development strategies of the Company.

Throughout the term of office with the Phoenix Group, Mr. CHUI
has been instrumental in Phoenix’s PRC domestic business
development, programme production, advertising operation, marketing
network and public relations. In 1996, he was in charge of the
production of “Flying over the Yellow River”, a major television
programme of Phoenix, which achieved popular success and
heightened the popularity of Phoenix in the PRC and overseas Chinese

communities.

Prior to joining Phoenix, Mr. CHUI was a Director and the general
manager of Tianhua International Culture and Art Company Limited
in Beijing focusing on developing various cultural, arts and publication

businesses.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. MURD OCH, James Rupert, aged 28, appointed on June 5, 2000,
is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of STAR Group Limited
(“STAR”). In addition, Mr. MURDOCH is the Executive Vice President
of The News Corporation Limited.

Mr. CHURCHILL, Bruce Barrett, aged 44, appointed on June 5, 2000,
is the President and Chief Operating Officer of STAR.

Mr. CHURCHILL is responsible for operations across the entire
company and plays a key role in determining and implementing STAR’s

development strategy.

Mr. CHURCHILL joined STAR in 1996 from Fox Television (“Fox”)
in Los Angeles, where he was the Senior Vice President, Finance. At
Fox, he managed the overall financial, corporate development and
administrative functions for Fox Broadcasting, Fox Television Stations,
FX Cable Networks and Twentieth Century Television domestic

syndication.
Before moving to Fox, Mr. CHURCHILL spent a year as Senior Vice

President at Paramount Technology Group, following four years as

vice president, strategic planning at Paramount Pictures.
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In 1984, he graduated with his Masters in Business Administration
from the Harvard Business School. Subsequently, Mr. CHURCHILL
joined McKinsey and Company Inc. as an associate. He worked with
McKinsey and Company Inc. for four years, specialising in media and
consumer products, until joining Paramount Pictures in 1989. He has
a Bachelor of Arts degree in American Studies from Stanford

University.

Mr. LAU, Yu Leung, John, aged 38, appointed on June 5, 2000, holds
the position of Chief Financial Officer of STAR. Mr. LAU has overall
responsibility for all financial matters of STAR, including corporate
accounting, management and financial reporting, internal audit,

treasury and tax.

Prior to joining STAR, Mr. LAU was the Chief Financial Officer of
San Miguel Brewing International Ltd. with similar functional
responsibilities covering the company’s operations throughout Asia

Pacific.

Before this role, Mr. LAU was the Director of Finance and Business
Development, Asia Pacific for GE Information Services, a wholly owned
subsidiary of General Electric Company in the U.S. In that capacity,
Mr. LAU oversaw both the finance and business development functions
and was instrumental in setting up and managing various joint

ventures of the companies with local partners in the region.

Mr. LAU graduated from Brigham Young University in Utah in August
1988, with Masters in Accountancy and Information Systems and a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting. He is a current member of

the California Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. CHEUNG, Chun On, Daniel, aged 42, appointed on June 5, 2000,
joined STAR in 1991 and is now the Executive Vice President, Hong
Kong and Taiwan. He is responsible for the management and strategic

planning of STAR Group’s services in these regions.

Before assuming his present position, Mr. CHEUNG was the General
Manager of STAR in Taiwan when he was responsible for advertising
sales, subscription television service and television programme
production. Under Mr. CHEUNG’s leadership, STAR’s television
channels, namely STAR Chinese Channel, STAR International Movies,
STAR Mandarin Movies, Channel [V] achieved more than 90%

penetration of Taiwan’s cable systems.

Mr. CHEUNG graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in
Electronic Engineering. Before he joined STAR, he was the technical
consultant of Cable and Wireless HKT Limited for the Global Virtual

Private Network.
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Mr. XU Gang, aged 45, is a Non-executive Director of the Company
since November 13, 2000. Mr. XU has extensive experience in banking
and investment. He was Deputy Chief Executive Officer of BOC
International Holdings Limited (“BOCI”) and Chairman of a number
of subsidiary companies of BOCI. Currently, he is the Chairman of
Bank of China Group Investment Limited (“BOCGI”) and Director
of a number of companies controlled by BOCGI or in which BOCGI

has an interest.

Mr. CHEUNG San Ping, age 46, appointed on January 2, 2001 as a
Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. CHEUNG has extensive

experience in trading.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LO, Ka Shui, aged 54, appointed on June 5, 2000, is the Deputy
Chairman and Managing Director of Great Eagle Holdings Limited.
He is the Non-executive Chairman of Panda-Recruit Limited and a
Director of City e-Solutions Limited, The HSBC China Fund Limited,
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, Shanghai
Industrial Holdings Limited and China Mobile (Hong Kong) Limited.
He is also a Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
and the Chairman of the Listing Committee of the Growth Enterprise
Market, a Vice President of The Real Estate Developers Association of
Hong Kong, a Trustee of the Hong Kong Centre for Economic Research,
a member of Long Term Housing Strategy Advisory Committee and a
member of the Council of Advisors on Innovation and Technology.
He is also the Chairman of the Hospital Authority. He graduated with
a Bachelor of Science degree from McGill University and M.D. from
Cornell University, cer tified in Cardiology. He has more than 23 years’
experience in property and hotel development and investment both

in Hong Kong and overseas.

Mr. KUOK, Khoon Ean, aged 46, appointed on June 5, 2000, has been
with the KUOK Group since 1978 and is the Chairman of South China
Morning Post (Holdings) Limited. He is a Director of Kerry Holdings
Limited and Kerry Group Limited. He is also a Director of a number
of publicly listed companies in Malaysia and Singapore. He graduated
from Nottingham University, United Kingdom with a Bachelor’s degree

in Economics.

Alternate Director

Mr. GONG Jianzhong, aged 39, is an Alternate Director to Mr. XU
Gang, Non-executive Director of the Company, since April 18, 2001.
Mr. Gong has extensive experience in banking and investment. He
was the Head of Bank of China, Shao Yang Branch. Currently, he is an
Assistant General Manager of Bank of China Group Investment
Limited (“BOCGI”) and Director of a number of companies controlled
by BOCGI or in which BOCGI has an interest.
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Senior Management

Mr. LEUNG, Noong Kong, aged 53, currently holds the position of
Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. LEUNG had
been instrumental in the setting up of the Phoenix Group and has
been part of its senior management team ever since its inception. His
primary responsibilities include the supervision of the day-to-day
operations of the Phoenix Group, the establishing of management
structures pertaining to the evolving operations of the Phoenix Group,
as well as the mapping out of strategies, in conjunction with the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, for the business development of
the Phoenix Group. Mr. LEUNG joined Satellite Television Asian
Region Limited in 1991. From 1991 to 1995, he was involved in various
tasks relating to the development of STAR’s business in the Greater
China region. He also played a pivotal role in the launching of STAR
Chinese Channel and STAR Movies Channel in 1991 and 1993
respectively. Following the formation of Phoenix Satellite TV, Mr.
LEUNG was again instrumental in the launching of the Phoenix
Chinese Channel and the Phoenix Movies Channel and the taking

control in the management of the Phoenix CNE Channel.

Mr. LEUNG is a well-known figure in the Hong Kong media and
broadcasting field. He hosted a film magazine programme for the
Jade Channel of Television Broadcasting Limited (“TVB”) in the late
1960s. From 1969 to 1972, he then worked as a translator and editor
for one of Hong Kong’s first finance newspapers, Ming Pao Evening
News. From 1971 to 1978, he worked respectively for the United States
Information Service in Hong Kong and the BBC External Services in
London as editor, programme producer and news announcer.
Thereafter, he spent 10 years with TVB, programming for its Jade
Channel and Pearl Channel at different times. He had also been with
ATV for a short period. While at TVB and ATV, and subsequently at
STAR, he set up the internal standards and practices departments for
all three and he was well versed in all the regulatory issues involved in

television broadcasting in Greater China region.

Apart from being an experienced personality in the media field, Mr.
LEUNG is also a renowned writer on the cinema and on cultural
studies in Hong Kong and Taiwan, as well as a published author of
several books in these fields. He had also been a programme consultant
to many international film festivals, including the Hong Kong
Inter national Film Festival, and had sat on the editorial boards for

many prestigious publications at various times.

Mr. WANG, Jiyan, aged 52, joined Phoenix in March 1996. Mr. WANG
is the Executive Vice President of Phoenix Satellite TV and the

Company and Head of the Phoenix Chinese Channel. Mr. WANG has

taught in Beijing Broadcasting Institute for more than twenty years.

AP R

MR Sk > 535K - BUE AL B 09 B AT EC
HEAR o 7 R L BB A A S R JE B R
T RSEAHE T HEM A o A RS M
BSL BN BUAE - B e — BRI B m A HEL R 9 AL
B2 — o B0 R a5 B RURVSE Y F
BRI > R GE I SES G R R B o
SE R 3 8 10 B AN A o S L B A 2 R AT B
KR ) R R JEL SR P SE S R R A RS o TRSEAR R
— IR EEBRARA R o fE— L
—EJULEAE > M2 BT AR TE O o 2 [
W2 B SE B R AR o A S0 B A AR TR R
& 43 Bl — JL L — 4 — UL = 4 RO ) 7
THTAE - RAEERREEENZEAE - 76
AU FSOL 2 A% > SRS A TR BRAE B e L Ao
B SCE - B E R B B BUR AL R
WE T EE T EERLER -

REEEF BN EETER—MNA AL - £
— LN FAEMRRN - RoeA W TE B %A R
AR (AR 3522 6 F45 — R B REHE H -
— NI E—ILE T4 MTEF WS —
8 S A P S I A7 A O o A A e L
L—E—LENE > RIEA SRR SR
ST P B % T A 2 P 3 [ JBE R O ) 98 AT i TR
108 2 T BB B o AR o M EREAR > A
HIERE R WIZR A H H &My w2 7 ERL
B o BLAh - RSB A AR TAE T — B I
] o BRSEATE HeqR TARM A9 AR - Todl K fi
B o 8 BRI S WA AR G AR < ) B
B FY o 3 e K 3 I A ) AR A
LB

BR TR AR A T T RN Ak RS
(PR = R SRS A d P IS & LT
X AR RO A D IE 7 T A o R
ER AR R ERE - GEEEASK
I % R B O B E R S BB R D T A
3 4 L ] o

ERFRE > 525 0 R IUILNE = H R
JEAR - AL R A W A 7 A F B AT R
MEABERR T A GR o B8 E LR
B¢ A 208 1 4R o

25



@ | Phoenix Annual Repor t ARk 2000-2001

Mr. WANG is one of the leading television programme producers in
China and participated in the direction and production of a number
of television programmes in early years. His television programme

productions have won numerous domestic and overseas awards.

Mr. WANG is also a scholar in the television industry and has been
the panelist of various international television festivals and the
presenter of international Chinese language television festivals. He is
also a renowned media educator and enjoys a professor title. During
the two decades of teaching in the Beijing Broadcasting Institute, he
was the head of the television department for over ten years and was

the deputy dean of the Beijing Broadcasting Institute for six years.

Mr. YEUNG, Ka Keung, aged 42, is the Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of Phoenix Satellite TV and the Company in
charge of corporate finance and administration. Mr. YEUNG joined
Phoenix in March 1996 and has been in charge of all of Phoenix’s
internal and external financial management and arrangements as well

the supervision of administration and personnel matters.

Mr. YEUNG graduated from the University of Birmingham and
remained in the United Kingdom until 1992 after obtaining his
qualification as a chartered accountant. Upon returning to Hong Kong,
he worked at Hutchison Telecommunications and STAR in the field

of finance and business development.

Mr. YU, Tungho, aged 54, joined Phoenix in March 1996. He is the
Executive Vice President of Phoenix Satellite TV and the Company in

charge of advertising and marketing networks.

Mr. YU graduated from the International Politics Department of the
People’s University of China. He is a well-known personality in
television broadcast and was the head of Guangdong Broadcasting
Station and Zhuhai Economic Broadcasting Station; the deputy editor-
in-chief of the Television Broadcasting Bureau of Guangdong Province,
the deputy general manager of Television Broadcast International
Economic and Technical Cooperation Group Company of China and

a Director of the Television Broadcast Institute of China.

Mr.YU’s professional ability in respect of television broadcasting has
been recognised by the industry. In the 1980’s, he was elected the
founder and first president of the Economic Broadcasting Station
Research Institute of China. In 1994, he was engaged by TCI, one of
the largest cable television companies in the United States, as its China
advisor. In January 2000, he was elected Chairman of the Association

of Hong Kong Advertising Industry.
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

According to the business objectives as stated in the
prospectus of the Company dated June 21, 2000 (“the
Prospectus”) for the period January — June 2001

Channel Development
Establish alliances with content providers for Phoenix
InfoNews Channel

Increase broadcasting hours of Phoenix CNE Channel

Subject to obtaining the relevant regulatory approval,
begin construction of the production centre in Shenzhen

Conduct feasibility study and prepare development plan
for Cantonese broadcasting capabilities and begin
preparation for the launch of a Cantonese channel

Internet Strategy
Identify loyal sub-communities to facilitate e-commerce
opportunities

Explore new services that strengthen the tie between the
Group’s television and Internet communities

Expand content and features

Complete initial trial for broadband platform
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Actual business progress for the period January —
June 2001

InfoNews acquired news sources from various suppliers,
notably securing a three-year deal with USA’s Fox News
Network L.L.C.

Broadcasting hours of Phoenix CNE Channel have
been increased from 6 to 8 hours a day, effective
January 1, 2001

The Group has acquired a prime site in Shenzhen city
centre and is now at the stage of soliciting design
proposals from architectural firms for the construction
of a new production centre. Documentation for the
formation of the project company to monitor the
development of the production centre is being prepared.

The Cantonese channel project will not be activated
for the time being. This will enable the Group to
concentrate its efforts for the short term on building
up the two recently-established channels instead of
starting a new one.

Investment in the Internet has been reduced so as to lower
development costs because of limited business viability
in this area. The global landscape of the Internet has
shifted tremendously during the past year and we are
constantly evaluating business opportunities. Apart from
maintaining the existing operation of our corporate web-
site, no material financial commitments have been made
in this sector. We will adjust our investment scale
according to changes in the circumstances and will explore
areas that will complement and enhance our core business.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Group raised approximately HK$732,588,000 upon the listing of
the Company and approximately HK$83,726,000 pursuant to the
exercise of an over-allotment option.

During the year ended June 30, 2001, the Group has incurred the
following expenses to achieve the business objectives as set out in the
Prospectus:

J Approximately HK$15,934,000 for acquisition of equipment and
facilities of the production centre in Shenzhen.

J Approximately HK$29,177,000 for deposit and part payment
of the land use right in Shenzhen.

J Approximately HK$47,363,000 for capital expenditure on the
new channels, including Phoenix InfoNews Channel and
Phoenix North America Chinese Channel.

J Approximately HK$110,421,000 for operating expenditure of
the new channels.

J Approximately HK$7,676,000 for capital expenditure on the
www.phoenixtv.com web-site.

J Approximately HK$38,341,000 for operating expenditure of the
web-site.
J Approximately HK$15,842,000 for operating expenditure of the

Group’s magazine, Phoenix Weekly.

J The remaining net proceeds have been deposited in licensed
banks in Hong Kong.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a net profit attributable to shareholders of
approximately HK$53,984,000 for the year ended June 30, 2001 as
compared to a net profit attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$50,315,000 for the previous year.

Turnover for the year ended June 30, 2001 was approximately
HK$713,687,000, an increase of 39.6% from last year, which was
attributable mainly to the increase in advertising revenue. Operating
cost increased 44.0% to approximately HK$536,304,000 as our new
channels commenced operations. Staffing cost increased 86.0% from
HK$73,870,000 to HK$137,427,000 approximately as our number of
employees increased from 164 to over 400. In addition, programming
cost and other operating cost increased following the expansion of
the Group’s businesses.
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The following table summarises the revenue of the Group for the
financial years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000.
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Financial year
ended June 30,

BREANH=1THI
Z W AR
2001 2000
e 2 S ZERETAR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T # 7 F o
Television Broadcasting L
Advertising income JEE 4 0 4 674,350 485,654
Subscription income L& 29,887 25,182
Total A 704,237 510,836
Weekly Magazine T
Advertising income J# 450l 35 5,761 79
Subscription income Nl 2,060 427
Total 8 7,821 506
Internet 4wl
Technical services and equipment F MG M R B B
rental income o M HH 4 IR A 1,284 =
Others HoAhy 345 —
Analysis by Geographical Regions: i H 168 43 A
China Hh 639,563 455,559
International 3 74,124 55,783
Total 8 713,687 511,342

The substantial increase in the Group’s revenue was attributable to
the increase in advertising income of Phoenix Chinese Channel, which
was primarily a result of an increase in average advertising rate.

Television Broadcasting. Television broadcasting revenues, composed
of advertising income and subscription income, were contributed by
Phoenix Chinese Channel, Phoenix Movies Channel, Phoenix InfoNews
Channel and Phoenix North America Chinese Channel.

For the year ended June 30, 2001, advertising income of Phoenix
Chinese Channel increased 36.7% to approximately HK$662,370,000,
representing 94.1% of the total television broadcasting revenue. For
the same period, income of Phoenix Movies Channel increased 36.8%
to approximately HK$27,896,000 representing 4.0% of the total
television broadcasting revenue. Phoenix InfoNews and North America
Chinese channels, which are still in their start-up phase, had
insignificant contribution to our revenue.

A 4 B WSO S R R A 1) B T A8 B RLE i A
A B g 2 W > 2T A 2 B T
ZHIR o

YA LR AR AR o A R U
ARG WA > ToAE A BEAE R 3 A -~ B
AR A RUE G E R A K LR A
EMa -

BEETENA=ZTHILEE > BE#HH
WA 2 JE IR 3 BN 36.7% 2 47 662,370,000
W T o H 7y T A R % AR AR 19 94.19% © TE[F] —
W > TR AR TR R A RO I 25 3% 0 36.8% % A1
27,896,000 JC > H /5y W A B BB AR U g 9
4.0% ° HR BB EHN & X BEHHENE
776 B 4B B B - WUt 3 FAM A i 25 0 R A
KAEER -
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Phoenix Weekly Magazine. Approximately 1.1% of the Group’s revenue
was generated from the advertising and subscription income of the
Phoenix Weekly Magazine.

Internet. Revenue from Internet mainly composed of technical services
and equipment rental income. Approximately 0.2% of the Group’s
revenue was generated from internet operation.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at June 30, 2001, other than the aggregate outstanding b orrowings
of approximately HK$17,913,000 representing current accounts with
related companies which were unsecured and non-interest bearing
and approximately HK$779,000 representing short term bank loan
which were secured and interest bearing, the Group had neither had
any outstanding secured borrowings nor created any mortgage or
charge. Accordingly, the financial position of the Group has been very
liquid.

STAFF

As at June 30, 2001, the Group had over 400 full-time employees. The
number of employees increased by 170.7% resulting from the
establishment of new channels and new businesses. The Group had
not experienced any significant labour disputes or substantial change
in the number of its employees during the past 24 months which led
to the disruption of its normal business operations. The Directors
consider the Group’s relationship with its employees to be good.
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The Directors have the pleasure of presenting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of Phoenix Satellite
Television Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Phoenix Group”) for the year ended
June 30, 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are shown in Note 17 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Phoenix Group’s revenue and profit from operations
by nature of revenue and geographical regions is as follows:

Report of the Directors # % @i |

BEHRRE 2 BA R ERARA R (AR
A1) B FLMTE A F (oA A [RUEV R ) =
TR —AENH = B IR AR B 2 A i b R A
Bk -

EREH
ARNF 2 EEEHRBEENR o T A
T RS W B AR W 17 o

TS I e i i A b [ ) 0 2 WA T R
ikl VT U

Profit from

Revenue operations
B A BB R
HK$°000 HK$’000
F i F il
By nature of revenue: WAME :
Advertising sales JEE 4 6 674,350 674,350
Subscription sales WA 2 5 29,887 29,887
Magazine advertising e A N AT R B
and subscription sales 7,821 7,821
Equipment rental income o M HH 4 i A 1,284 1,284
Others HoAthy 345 345
713,687 713,687
Less: W
Operating expenses KeEE A (536,304)
Selling, general and B R
administrative expenses T A (175,911)
1,472
By geographical region: Hh
China G3 639,563
International 23 74,124
713,687

No analysis of profit from operations by geographical region is
presented as operating and other expenses are generally centralized
and not separated by geographical region.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND PROGRAMMES SUPPLIERS

The Phoenix Group’s top five customers accounted for approximately
12% (2000 — 14%) of the total sales for the year. The top five
programme suppliers accounted for approximately 63% (2000 — 54%)
of the total programme purchases for the year. In addition, the Phoenix
Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 4% (2000 —
4%) of total sales and the Phoenix Group’s largest programme supplier
accounted for approximately 28% (2000 — 26%) of total programme
purchases for the year.

$5 6 3] 3 2 A8 4 i A o Al A 2 51 5 R 2
R T HA B S — JRARE Th R B R A AR R
#op e

FE% P K H

Bl SE B HoKE P AL B E R 120% (2 F
T 1 14%) > 100 FOKE B A R R A5 4R
FE 4 AR R BE AR 2 63% (T EE T AE ¢ 549) o
BEAN o JREVEE I R & AT Ak AR B A 2 4%
(B EEAE ¢ 4%) - i BB M ok 6 B {3
JRE B B0 440 A 4F B 6 B AR PR B A 2 289% (T E
T 1 26%) °
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STAR TV Filmed Entertainment Limited is the largest programme
supplier of the Phoenix Group referred to above. Details of the
transactions between the Phoenix Group and STAR TV Filmed
Entertainment Limited are set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.
STAR TV Filmed Entertainment Limited is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of STAR Television Holdings Limited, which in turn is a
major shareholder of the Company.

ATV Enterprises Limited is one of the five largest programme suppliers
of the Phoenix Group referred to above. Details of the transactions
between the Phoenix Group and ATV Enterprises Limited are set out
in Note 4 to the financial statements. Mr. LIU, Changle and Mr. CHAN,
Wing Kee, own approximately 14% and 18% indirect interest of ATV
Enterprises Limited respectively as at June 30,2001.

In the opinion of the Directors, such transactions were carried out on
terms no more favourable than terms available to independent third
parties.

Save as aforementioned, none of the Directors, their associates, or any
shareholders which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital has a beneficial interest in
any one of the Phoenix Group’s top five customers and/or programme
suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Phoenix Group for the year are set out on page 44
of the annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend, and
recommend that the retained profit of approximately HK$4,352,000
of the Company at June 30, 2001 be carried forward.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Phoenix
Group for the last five fiscal years is set out on page 79 and page 80.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movement in share capital and share options of the
Company are set out in Notes 18 and 19, respectively, to the financial
statements.

RESERVES
Movements in reserves during the year are set out in Note 20 to the
financial statements.

As at June 30, 2001, the Company’s retained profit of approximately
HK$4,352,000 was available for distribution to its shareholders.

DONATIONS
During the year, charitable and other donations of approximately
HK$21,000 (2000 — HK$112,000) were made.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the
financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets are set out in Note 14 to the
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company who held office during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
LIU, Changle
CHUI, Keung

(Alternate Director to CHUI, Keung)
(Alternate Director to LIU, Changle)

Non-executive Directors:
MURDOCH, James Rupert
CHURCHILL, Bruce Barrett (Alternate Director to LAU, Yu Leung
John and CHEUNG, Chun On
Daniel)

(Alternate Director to MURDOCH,
James Rupert, CHURCHILL, Bruce
Barrett and CHEUNG, Chun On
Daniel)

(Alternate Director to MURDOCH,
James Rupert, CHURCHILL, Bruce
Barrett and LAU, Yu Leung John)
(Appointed on November 13, 2000)

LAU, Yu Leung John

CHEUNG, Chun On Daniel

XU, Gang
CHEUNG, San Ping (Appointed on January 2, 2001,
Alternate Director to LIU, Changle
and CHUI, Keung)

(Appointed on April 18, 2001,
Alternate Director to XU, Gang)
(Resigned on November 13, 2000)

GONG, Jianzhong
LIANG, Xiaoting

CHAN, Fung Kit Ching (Resigned on January 2, 2001)
Independent Non-executive Directors:

LO, Ka Shui

KUOK, Khoon Ean

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, CHUI,
Keung, CHURCHILL, Bruce Barret, CHEUNG, San Ping and XU, Gang,
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company commencing from June 30, 2000.
The term of each agreement will be for a term of three years
commencing from June 30, 2000 and thereafter may be terminated by
either party giving to the other not less than three months’ written
notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not terminable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.

The terms of office of each of the Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at June 30, 2001, the interests of the Directors and chief executives
in the share capital of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests)
Ordinance (“SDI Ordinance”)) as recorded in the register maintained
under Section 29 of the SDI Ordinance or as notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
were as follows:

o g 2 il o7 HE A
REFRR-FAA=Z+H > HEAXARES
W (B FR R MR (4Rl Stk 1)) 5529
oeds B 2 B R M 2 Re sk s AR A 7] R A A
25 B RS m) (TS BT )) Mg > A5 3E H %
EBfTEN B A AR K HBE XA GEFR
WM G e ) 2B P A 2R AT

(1) Ordinary shares (1) % Bt
Number of
Name Type of interest ordinary shares
¥4 B 2 PR WEBEH
LIU, Changle Corporate interests (Note) 1,854,000,000
B4 o ElE AR (ML)

CHEUNG, Chun On Daniel
IR

Note:  Mr. LIU, Changle is the beneficial owner of approximately 93.3% of
the issued share capital of Today’s Asia Limited, which in turn is
interested in approximately 37.6% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at June 30, 2001.

(2) Share options
As at June 30, 2001, the Company had granted the following
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to the
Directors of the Company to subscribe for ordinary shares of

Personal interests 110,000

I8 N HE 2

Mzt - BRI AS H AR 74
93.3% B BEAT AR Z B s HEA A > T
HARR FERE—AFERNH =1 HH
HEA £137.6% 2 AN ) B BEAT IR AR 2
HE2E o

(2) Jile B A
MNoEE—AENA=ZTH > AXFER
TR 1 UK BH AT % i R RO E T ) 1) AR A ]
AT T RR AR o F] 2 i T

the Company. RET :
Number of Exercise price
Name options Date of grant per share
o #4 Jik I HiE % H i B I AT 4 5
HK$
# 7T
LIU, Changle * 5,320,000 June 14, 2000 1.08
91 v —BEREAH TIH
CHUI, Keung * 3,990,000 June 14, 2000 1.08
B —EEEEAATIA
@ Being the Executive Directors of the Company. & BANRZBATES

No such options have been exercised during the period from
the date of grant to June 30, 2001.

Save as disclosed herein, as at June 30, 2001, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company, had any personal,
corporate or other interests in the share capital of the Company
or its associated corporations as recorded in the register
maintained under Section 29 of the SDI Ordinance or as
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On June 7, 2000, two share option schemes of the Company were
approved by the shareholders of the Company, namely Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme. The summary of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme is set out in
Appendix VI of the prospectus of the Company dated June 21, 2000
(the “Prospectus”) under the section headed “Share Option Schemes”.
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In order to enhance the flexibility in the implementation of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme, the
committee of four Directors established for the administration of the
share option schemes (the “Committee”) had approved certain
amendments to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
the Share Option Scheme on February 14, 2001. The Stock Exchange
had also approved the proposed amendments on February 7,2001.

The summary of the revised Share Option Scheme is set out in the
Appendix of the Half Yearly Report 2000/2001. Similar amendments
for administrative purposes are made to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and paragraphs 7, 11, 12, 13, 14 and 15 set out in the Appendix
of the Half-yearly Report 2000/2001 shall replace the corresponding
paragraphs of the summary of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme set
out in Appendix VI of the Prospectus.

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
As at June 30, 2001, the following share options granted by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to the
employees of the Phoenix Group to acquire shares were
outstanding:

Total number Number of

Report of the Directors # % @i |
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(1) B 2 B 3908 i B HE
o EE—AEANHAHZH s AN ARE
T YR B A S T B AR T 2 g JE L
1 B 452 H 1] R 0 B 073 2 W BB ARE v 43 R AT
R -

Exercise price

of employees share options Date of grant per share Exercise period
e H¥H Jik JBe i % H i B BB AT 1 6 A7 1 48 39
HK$ (Note a)

# T (W} ita)

138 57,336,000 June 14, 2000 1.08 June 14, 2001 to
BB RAE June 13, 2010

ANHA+HH “EE

AHTIHE =

S

ANH+T=H

No options have been granted to Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

624,000 options have been exercised during the period from
the date of grant to June 30, 2001. As at June 30, 2001, 1,782,000
options granted to 12 employees were lapsed when they ceased
their employment with the Phoenix Group.

(2) Share Option Scheme
As at June 30, 2001, the following share options granted by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme to the employees of

the Phoenix Group to acquire shares were outstanding:

Total number Number of

I BAT 2 e B ST I BUAT 2 o A AR
YR B A S T D S R T ) AT e
JEHE -

EHEHE T E—4FNA =+ HIE
W - AT T 624,000 B B AE o 7
CEEENA=ZTH > Bt 4R
B 7 2 1,782,00017 5§ B AE R A 7 3% 18
i B\ [ 1 g

(2) N JBCHESH B
REFEEFERNAZTH > ANFERE
S S AR 3 ) LSRR R B 4 o TR
Fe 22 s S M P A5 R AT B 0

Exercise price

of employees share options Date of grant per share Exercise period
e H¥H Yk JBe it % H i B I AT 1 6 A7 1 48 39
HK$ (Note a)

# T (W} it a)

3 2,900,000 February 15, 2001 1.99 February 15, 2002
EBE AR to February 14, 2011

—A+nH —ELTF

“HtHaHE=E

A

—A+HH
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No options have been granted to the Executive Directors, Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
under the Share Option Scheme.

No options have been exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
period from the date of grant to June 30, 2001.

Note a: No options may be exercised within 12 months after the date
of grant of the options. Details of the time and the percentage
of shares comprised in the options that may be exercised are
set out in Appendix VI of the Prospectus under the section
headed “Share Option Schemes”.

PHOENIXI PLAN

On June 7, 2000, PHOENIXi Investment Limited (“PHOENIXi”), a
member of the Phoenix Group had adopted the PHOENIXi 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan (the “PHOENIXi Plan”). Under the PHOENIXi Plan,
the employees of PHOENIXi, including any Executive Directors, in
the full-time employment of PHOENIXi or its subsidiaries or the
Company are eligible to take up options to subscribe for shares in
PHOENIXi. The summary of the terms of the PHOENIXi Plan are set
out in Appendix VI of the Prospectus under the section headed “Share
Option Schemes”.

As at June 30, 2001, no options have been granted under the
PHOENIXi Plan.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Under the terms of the Company’s share option schemes approved by
the shareholders on June 7, 2000, the Committee may, at their
discretion, invite any employee of the Company or any of the Phoenix
Group companies, including any Executive Directors, to take up
options to subscribe for shares in the Company. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the share
option schemes may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

The Company has applied for a waiver from strict compliance with
Rule 23.02(2) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM Listing Rules”) so that the total
number of shares available for issue under the options granted may
increase up to 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time. Please refer to the paragraph “Share Option Schemes” in
the section of the Prospectus headed “Waivers from compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance”.

Save as disclosed above, and other than those in connection with the
Phoenix Group reorganisation scheme prior to the Company’s listing
of shares, at no time during the year was the Company or any of the
companies comprising the Phoenix Group a party to any arrangement
to enable the Company’s Directors or their associates to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance in relation to the Phoenix Group’s business
to which the Company or any of the companies comprising the
Phoenix Group was a party and in which any of the Company’s
Directors or members of its management had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

36

R JRRAT R R ST T AT
AR 5 P R ) AT AT I A A

AR E R EE—HNH =+ H 1k
ST A A e AR RE AT B - GRS
R -
Bif ik o SBCHEAS AT B2 b HOE S A
AT o A BR 47 o e WE 2 5 ] S
A AT A R R A7 2 E 2% 1 A 4R TR
7R Bk N2 [ HE S ) — B -

PHOENIXTI# #

R EETENHEH > BUREEZ R E A
PHOENIXi Investment Limited ([ PHOENIXi])

A PHOENIXI — & % F4F I {7 48 i) 51 &1
([PHOENIXizl #1]) - #83#2 PHOENIXiz & >

PHOENIXizk H fff J&§ 2~ 7l s A A 7l 2 2 kg B
(G5 AT T 47 3 ) A & % % 4 n] B0
PHOENIXi i iy 2 f§ B HE - PHOENIXiwf & 2 fh¢
FROME E B O 10 R 2 R Bk S TR A RE ST
— o

W oEE—AENA=TH o R AT T
PHOENIXix| # 2 i B 4 -

o O B By o A8 2 BE A
WP F N —FEEFENH L HALHEZ AN
M A RERT B - 2 B 6 ] |91 28 5 A8 A & BT A
S BB A AT E B (BIFMEAMTHATE ) 3
A0 ] AN ) B A 2 B R T o AR R B A
WEGT B35 2 B RERE S & 2 8 E > 2 U
AN B BEAT AR 2 10%4 [ -

AN T EL R R S B 2 ST A S 2 BT
B (TR 26 Ak i B3R ) 56 23.02(2) e 2 BAE -
SO R 0 B T R AT 2 M AR R A = A
28 TR 2 AT IR 2 30% o w2 B AR
AL [ D2 ST A SEA b TTRE S % 2 ] Ak 49 2 KR
SE ) A THEE B R T ) — B e

B b SO B R A A O w0y b T R AEAT 2 4
B AL A o A ] R AR AT AT A R
O3 R A A AT AT R ] AR 0 22 BRLRT S AT T B
BUE AL 7 3 S O B A R A AR A R
BYAT o] LAt 2% B A B B4 2 T M 4

[ A g )

AR ) 2 2 O B A B TR A O ] R E AR
AEAA A B 23 W] 2 BLET 7 K% B4R B SRS A KB
& > BT R BUAE MAE TR A R 2 5 4
o MR R A AT T KR AR o



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at June 30, 2001, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
under Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance showed that, the following
persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital:

Name

£ Hi
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By
ROEE—EAAS R > BRI
e 45 161 ) e A7 B 2 o M R S T
BLF 2 A OF A7) 9 2 5 B AT B B)
B M B B AT A A 7 B AT IR AR 1093 L
Z Wi -

Number of
ordinary shares

% 5 ¥ H

STAR Television Holdings Limited (Note 1)
STAR Television Holdings Limited (4f 7 1)

Today’s Asia Limited (Note 2)
4 H AR A RN (B iF2)

Notes:

1. STAR Television Holdings Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
STAR Television Limited, which in turn is owned approximately 75%
by News Cayman Holdings Limited and approximately 25% by STAR
Group Limited. STAR Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
News Cayman Holdings Limited. News Publishers Investments Pty.
Limited holds 100% of the ordinary voting shares of News Cayman
Holdings Limited. News Publishers Investments Pty. Limited is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of News Publishers Holdings Pty. Limited,
which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The News Corporation
Limited, a listed company in New Zealand, Australia, London and
New York.

By virtue of the SDI Ordinance, The News Corporation Limited, News
Publishers Holdings Pty. Limited, News Publishers Investments Pty.
Limited, News Cayman Holdings Limited, STAR Television Limited
and STAR Group Limited are all deemed to be interested in the
1,854,000,000 shares held by STAR Television Holdings Limited.

2. Today’s Asia Limited is beneficially owned by Mr. LIU, Changle and
Mr. CHAN, Wing Kee as to 93.3% and 6.7% interests, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Company’s Articles of
Association and the law in the Cayman Islands in relation to the issue
of new shares by the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REPURCHASE OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or repurchased any of the Company’s shares during the year.

1,854,000,000

1,854,000,000
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SPONSORS’ INTERESTS

Bank of China Group Investment Limited, beneficially owned by Bank
of China, the ultimate holding company of BOCI Asia Limited,
indirectly owns the entire issued share capital of China Wise
International Limited which in turn owns 412,000,000 shares
(approximately 8.35%) of the Company. One of the Non-executive
Directors of the Company, Mr. XU, Gang, who is also a Director of
Bank of China Group Investment Limited and China Wise
International Limited, has been nominated by China Wise International
Limited and appointed as a Director of fourteen subsidiaries of the
Phoenix Group, namely:

J Phoenix Satellite Television Company Limited

. Phoenix Satellite Television (Chinese Channel) Limited
. Phoenix Satellite Television (Movies) Limited

. Phoenix Satellite Television (Europe) Limited

. Phoenix Satellite Television Trademark Limited

. Phoenix Satellite Television Information Limited

. Phoenix Satellite Television (B.V.I.) Holding Limited

. Phoenix Satellite Television (InfoNews) Limited

J Phoenix Weekly Magazine (BVI) Limited

. Phoenix Satellite Television Development (BVI) Limited
. Phoenix Satellite Television (Universal) Limited

J Phoenix Satellite Television Development Limited

. Phoenix Satellite Television Investments (BVI) Limited
. Phoenix Glow Limited

Mr. GONG, Jianzhong, who is the Director of China Wise International
Limited, has been nominated and appointed as Alternate Director to
Mr. XU, Gang of the Company and the above fourteen subsidiaries of
the Phoenix Group.

Save as disclosed above, each of BOCI Asia Limited and Merrill Lynch
Far East Limited has confirmed:

(1) neither itself nor its associates has, or may have, any interest in
any class of securities (including derivatives) of the Company,
or any other company within the Phoenix Group (including
options or rights to subscribe such securities);

(ii) no Director or employee or their associates of BOCI Asia
Limited or Merrill Lynch Far East Limited who are involved in
providing advice to the Company has or may have, any interest
in any class of securities of the Company or any other company
within the Phoenix Group (including options or rights to
subscribe such securities but, for the avoidance of doubt,
excluding interests in securities that may be subscribed by any
such Directors or employee pursuant to the Public Offer);

(iii)  neither itself nor its associates accrued any material benefit as
a result of the successful outcome of the listing of the shares of
the Company on the GEM; and

(iv) no Director or employee or their associates of BOCI Asia
Limited or Merrill Lynch Far East Limited has a directorship
in the Company or any other company within the Phoenix
Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Stock Exchange has granted waivers to the Phoenix Group
from the full disclosure requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules in respect of connected transactions with
Satellite Television Asian Region Limited, STAR TV Filmed
Entertainment Limited and ATV Enterprises Limited:

(1)

(a)

Satellite Television Asian Region Limited (“STARL”) is
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of STAR Television
Holdings Limited, a major shareholder of the Company.
The connected transactions are:

(i)

(iii)

provision of technical and administrative services
for the operations of the Phoenix Chinese
Channel, Phoenix Movies Channel, Phoenix
InfoNews Channel and Phoenix North America
Chinese Channel. For the year ended June 30,
2001, the service charges paid to STARL
amounted to approximately HK$113,145,000,
which was calculated under normal commercial
terms in accordance with the executed service
agreements and agreed rates between a subsidiary
of the Company and STARL.

STARL acts as an exclusive advertising agent for
the Phoenix Group at all territories outside the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). For the year
ended June 30, 2001, advertising sales commission
paid to STARL amounted to approximately
HK$11,075,000, which was calculated based on
20% of the net advertising income generated and
received by STARL on behalf of the Phoenix
Group after deducting the relevant amount of
the third party agency fees incurred by it.

STARL acts as an agent to promote subscription
sales for the Phoenix Group. For the year ended
June 30, 2001, subscription sales commission paid
to STARL amounted to approximately
HK$1,447,000, which was calculated based on
15% of the subscription fees generated and
received by STARL on behalf of the Phoenix
Group.

STAR TV Filmed Entertainment Limited (“STAR
Filmed”) is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of STAR
Television Holdings Limited, a major shareholder of the
Company. The connected transaction relates to the
granting of a non-exclusive licence to exhibit a selection
of movies on Phoenix Movies Channel in the PRC for a
term of 10 years commencing from August 28, 1998.
For the year ended June 30, 2001, the film licence fees
paid to STAR Filmed amounted to approximately
HK$20,388,000, which was charged according to the
executed film rights licensing agreement between a
subsidiary of the Company and STAR Filmed.
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(c) During the year ended June 30, 2001, the Phoenix Group
acquired programme licences from certain subsidiaries
of STAR Television Holdings Limited, a major
shareholder of the Company. The programme licence
fees paid to the subsidiaries of STAR Television Holdings
Limited in respect of this connected transaction
amounted to approximately HK$920,000, which were
charged under normal commercial terms and were
negotiated on a case-by-case basis.

(d) ATV Enterprises Limited is a connected party by virtue
of the fact that Mr. LIU, Changle and Mr. CHAN, Wing
Kee, own approximately 14% and 18% indirect interest
of ATV Enterprises Limited respectively as at June 30,
2001. The connected transaction relates to the
acquisition of certain television programme licences
from ATV Enterprises Limited. For the year ended June
30, 2001, the programmes purchased from ATV
Enterprises Limited amounted to approximately
HK$6,125,000, which, in the opinion of the Directors,
were charged under normal commercial terms and were
negotiated on a case-by-case basis.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on July 26, 2001
in compliance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, a
subsidiary of the Company has entered into an agreement with
Fox News Network L.L.C. (“Fox”), an associate of STAR
Television Holdings Limited, a major shareholder of the
Company. The connected transactions relate to:

(a)  granting of non-exclusive and non-transferable licence
to subscribe Fox’s news service;

(b)  leasing of office space and access to workspace, subject
to availability; and

(c)  accessing Fox’s camera hook up at the United Nations,
interview positions in various places in the United States
and live shots from Fox’s satellite truck positions for
events that Fox is already covering, subject to availability.

For the year ended June 30, 2001, the service fees paid to Fox
amounted to approximately HK$715,000, which were charged
under the licensing agreement between a subsidiary of the
Company and Fox.

In addition, a subsidiary of the Company has licensed certain
office premises from STARL. For the year ended June 30, 2001,
the office premises rental paid to STARL amounted to
approximately HK$7,376,000, which was calculated by reference
to the area of space occupied by the Phoenix Group and was
proportional to the rental payable by STARL in respect of the
area occupied by it under its lease with the landlord. This licence
is a connected transaction but falls within Rule 20.24 of the
GEM Listing Rules as the annual total consideration or value
of the transaction (when aggregated or treated on an individual
basis) is less than the higher of HK$10,000,000 or 3% of the
net tangible assets of the Phoenix Group. Such transaction will
be exempted from the reporting, announcement and
shareholders’ approval requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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(3)
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The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above transactions and have considered the procedures
performed by the auditors of the Company in reviewing them and
confirmed that at the time of the transactions:

(a) the transactions have been entered into by the relevant member
of the Phoenix Group in the ordinary and usual course of its
business;

(b) the transactions have been entered into on an arm’s length
basis and on normal commercial terms (to the extent that there
are comparable transactions) or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms not less favourable to the Phoenix
Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)
independent third parties; and

(c) the transactions have been entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

COMPETING INTERESTS

Today’s Asia Limited, STAR Television Holdings Limited and China
Wise International Limited are interested in approximately 37.6%,
37.6% and 8.4% of the Company respectively. Today’s Asia Limited,
together with its shareholders, Mr. LIU, Changle and CHAN, Wing
Kee, STAR Television Holdings Limited and China Wise International
Limited are deemed to be the initial management shareholders of the
Company as defined under the GEM Listing Rules.

STAR Television Holdings Limited, together with its parent company,
The News Corporation Limited (“News Corporation”), are active in
the television broadcasting industry worldwide. News Cor poration’s
diversified global operations in the United States, the United Kingdom,
Australia, Latin America and Asia include the production of motion
pictures and television programming; television, satellite and cable
broadcasting; the publication of newspapers, magazines and books;
the production and distribution of promotional and advertising
products and services; the development of digital broadcasting; the
development of conditional access and subscriber management systems
and the creation and distribution of popular on-line programming.
Pursuant to a press release issued on June 20, 2000, News Corporation
announced that it would restructure its worldwide satellite platforms
and certain related assets into one umbrella entity to be called Sky
Global Holdings, Inc. (formerly known as Sky Global Networks, Inc.)
(“Sky Global”). It was announced that Sky Global would comprise
News Corporation’s equity interests in satellite distribution platforms
around the world including STAR Group Limited and its subsidiaries.
On June 20, 2000, Sky Global filed a registration statement with the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission relating to securities to be
offered for sale in an initial public offering (“IPO”) of Sky Global.
The expected IPO has been delayed and News Corporation is exploring
alternatives which may or may not include an IPO. Currently, STAR
Group Limited, the ultimate holding company of STAR Television
Holdings Limited, owns and operates multimedia digital platforms,
including satellite television, in the Asia Pacific region. STAR Group
Limited and its subsidiaries (including STAR Television Holdings
Limited) operate and broadcast a range of channels, such as STAR
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Movies and STAR Chinese Channel (which presently only broadcasts
in Taiwan) and Channel [V]. The broadcasting coverage of Channel
[V] includes China, Taiwan, Hong Kong, countries in South East Asia,
the Indian sub-continent and the Middle East. STAR Group Limited
confirmed on September 5, 2001 that it is in advanced discussions
with the State Administration of Radio, Film and Television (SARFT)
of China and China International Television Corporation (CITV)
concerning landing rights in Guangdong province for a new service.

Mr. LIU, Changle and Mr. CHAN Wing Kee, who beneficially own
93.3% and 6.7% respectively of Today’s Asia Limited, hold through
several intermediate companies at different levels approximately 14%
and 18% of Asia Television Limited, a Hong Kong based television
broadcasting company. Asia Television Limited is deemed to be a
connected person of the Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.
Primarily aiming at audience in Hong Kong, Asia Television Limited
broadcasts its programmes via terrestrial transmission through two
channels, one in Cantonese and the other in English. Signals of such
two channels can also be received in certain parts of Guangdong
Province of the PRC.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written terms
of reference based upon the guidelines recommended by the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants. The primary duties of the audit
committee are to review the Company’s annual report and accounts,
semi-annual reports and quarterly reports and to provide advice and
comments thereon to the Board of Directors. The audit committee is
also responsible for reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial
reporting and internal control procedures. The audit committee
comprises one Non-executive Director, namely Mr LAU, Yu Leung
John and two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Dr LO,
Ka Shui and Mr KUOK, Khoon Ean.

AUDITORS
The financial statements were audited by Arthur Andersen & Co. A

resolution for their reappointment as auditors for the ensuing year is
to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Mr. LIU, Changle
Chairman

Hong Kong, September 11, 2001
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ANDERSEN

Arthur Andersen & Co

21st Floor, Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PHOENIX SATELLITE TELEVISION

HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 44 to 78 of Phoenix
Satellite Television Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Phoenix Group”) which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
The Company’s Directors are responsible for preparing financial
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial
statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those statements and to report our opinion to you.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by
the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances
of the Phoenix Group and the Company, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as
to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Phoenix Group and the Company as at June
30, 2001 and of the profit and cash flows of the Phoenix Group for
the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN & CO
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, September 11, 2001
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETE%: & ¥ /i i {5 %

As at June 30, 20018 —~ FE—FENH=1TH

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (& & LA o 7t )

2001 2000
SRR CFFEF
Notes $°000 $’00£
i TF#x /o
(Note 25)
(Bt 7 25)
ASSETS ¥
CURRENT ASSETS ) ¥
Cash and bank balances 4 SR ﬁ 173 665,403 770,316
Accounts receivable, net JRRE Wk % K i A 10 122,645 82,549
Inventories & 372 435
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR IE 47 K
At 15 7K IE 11 166,091 106,747
Amounts due from related companies IR Wk I8 W A ) K IE 12 825 120
Self-produced programmes SRR 11,165 12,459
Purchased programme and film rights WEAEH LR MM 13 10,645 16,670
Total current assets B A AL {E 977,146 989,296
NON-CURRENT ASSETS T i By ¢ o
Fixed assets [ 7€ & 14 79,156 4,558
Purchased programme and film rights FEAEH L EEMmAE 13 36,515 19,841
Land deposit o LK 15 29,177 =
Loan to a related company R RN = 16 41,093 20,240
Total non-current assets AIE R E) & 185,941 44,639
Total assets A R 1,163,087 1,033,935
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 1146 B¢ JBe R B 4
CURRENT LIABILITIES s
Short term bank loan, secured 5 R AT R K — HE T 779 —
Accounts payable and accruals JRE AF B 3k B I w3k TR 80,866 71,531
Deferred income A AT Y A 12,355 9,163
Advertising revenue received in advance SER R 28,462 43,706
Amounts due to related companies JRE AS) B8 W6 > F] I 12 17,913 21,979
Tax payable JBE A5k B TH 1,356 -
Total current liabilities Ui B B fE AR 141,731 146,379
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FE R By £1 4%
Deferred taxation A 4 B IH 252 -
Minority interests D B RRE 4 5,019 7,753
Total non-current liabilities JE B B fE A 5,271 75753
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY JBe 3 A 2
Share capital Jie A 18 493,159 484,706
Reserves G 20 522,926 395,097
Total shareholders’ equity A HORE 4 1,016,085 879,803
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity A B R RO R 1,163,087 1,033,935
Approved by the Board of Directors on September 11, 2001 and signed A _FX—4FJLH +—HEEFHFER
on behalf of the Board by WM THEFRAREFGESE -

LIU, Changle ¥ % 4
Director # ¢
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BALANCE SHEET % & fi f& %

As at June 30, 2001 4 ~FEEX—4HFENH="1H

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (& # LA i ot 71 5)

Financial Statements W85 |

2001 2000
ZRE AR TR R
Notes $°000 $°000
Kt it Fi#o T T
ASSETS <43
CURRENT ASSETS L g
Cash and bank balances & KRAITAE 105,560 -
Prepayments, deposits and other AT RIE ~ 7 E K
receivables oA R U E 1,820 =
Total current assets B A AL (E 107,380 =
NON-CURRENT ASSET IR B H e
Interests in subsidiaries R} J2g 2 = HE 17 1,214,837 1,235,619
Total non-current asset AIE R E) & 1,214,837 1,235,619
Total assets UG 1,322,217 1,235,619
LIABILITY AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY £ & % JB o 4 23
CURRENT LIABILITY R
Accruals JE 5t # I8 2 =
Total liability B B A 2 =
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY JBE SR HE 2%
Share capital Jie A 18 493,159 484,706
Reserves it e 20 829,056 750,913
Total shareholders’ equity A HORE 4 1,322,215 1,235,619
Total liability and shareholders’ equity A B R RO R 1,322,217 1,235,619

Approved by the Board of Directors on September 11, 2001 and signed

RoBE AU+ O

on behalf of the Board by WM THEFRAREFGEHE
LIU, Changle VIREE A MURD OCH, James Rupert
Director # % Director # ¢
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT %% &

i 4 %

For the year ended June 30, 2001 #{ £ = FEE—FNH =1 H IFFF
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (b A& 3 53 A Fr#5 51 - & #849 LL it o 7t 5)

2001 2000
ZRE AR ZERTTAR
Notes $°000 $°000
Kt 7t F# 0 F T
(Note 25)
( fff 7 25)
REVENUE B A 3 713,687 511,342
OPERATING EXPENSES BELRMN 4 (536,304) (372,444)
SELLING, GENERAL AND i M RITB TN
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 4 (175,911) (98,130)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS [t ¥ il 1,472 40,768
OTHER INCOME I Al e A
Exchange gain, net e 5 A 4 3 AE 2,091 1,647
Interest income ] E e A 47,106 1,205
Other income, net HoA e A 5 5A 1,189 6,288
50,386 9,140
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION AND B B8 B A B Bk 3R
MINORITY INTERESTS HE 25 Wi % A 5 51,858 49,908
TAXATION B 7 (1,608) -
PROFIT BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS B A B B DI BE 25 iy i A 50,250 49,908
MINORITY INTERESTS A U JBE SR BE 3% 3,734 407
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE JBE 3 HE A %k A
TO SHAREHOLDERS 8 53,984 50,315
ACCUMULATED DEFICIT, beginning of year 4F ¥ % % i # (355,762) (406,077)
ACCUMULATED DEFICIT, end of year AR B RO (301,778) (355,762)
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE, F A 455 JBe 7 A
Hong Kong cents Al 9 1.10 1.22
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE, W% 19 0 B A
Hong Kong cents Al 9 1.09 1.22

A separate statement of recognised gains and losses is not presented
because there were no recognised gains or losses other than the profit

attributable to shareholders.
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Financial Statements W85 |

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS %5 & 3 4 il Bt %
For the year ended June 30, 2001 #{ £ = FEE—FNH =1 H IFFF
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (& # LA i ot 71 5)

2001 2000
“RE A —EERERLE
Notes $’°000 $°000
i 7# TF#x /o
(Note 25)
(Bt & 25)
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM REBGMAB & TH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2la (104,135) (4,676)
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND B W K i B
SERVICING OF FINANCE
Interest received from bank deposits B Wi SR 1T A7 2OR] B 47,106 1,205
Interest paid on short term bank loan B AT SR 47 48 1 1 5 R B (15) -
NET CASH INFLOW FROM B ] K i o B
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS i 7 B 4 i
AND SERVICING OF FINANCE 47,091 1,205
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B B
Loan to a related company NI (20,853) (20,240)
Increase in land deposit o b FEe 4 e (29,177) -
Purchase of fixed assets 5 A [ & (82,242) (2,747)
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets th B [ € B E P 15 KA 326 -
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM B3 BY P #EBL 4 5 8
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (131,946) (22,987)
NET CASH OUTFLOW T 2E i T R BL 4 U 8
BEFORE FINANCING (188,990) (26,458)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2 ) 21b
Proceeds from placement shares e A% U 4 - 706,702
Proceeds from public offering shares 25 BB i 4R - 78,523
Proceeds from exercise of over-allotment of A7 (7 68 % B R I A
shares by underwriters 90,621 —
Share options exercised by employees & B A7 18 s i W 673 -
Over-allotment, placements and public A 8 5 I I HE
offering expenses paid Eii SN R & (8,996) (52,637)
Capital contributions from D BUR R E A H R
minority shareholders 1,000 8,160
NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING T B AN B 83,298 740,748
(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND BeERBESM
CASH EQUIVALENTS (W A) B (105,692) 714,290
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ER B A BB A S
beginning of year 770,316 56,026
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ERBERBE S
end of year 2lc 664,624 770,316
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

1. ORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on February 2, 2000
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to
a group reorganisation scheme (“Group Reorganisation”) in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company
became the holding company of the Phoenix Group on April
17,2000 (the Company and its subsidiaries shall hereinafter be
referred to as the “Phoenix Group”). The shares of the Company
became listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on June 30,

2000.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are shown in Note 17

to the financial statements.

The Phoenix Group underwent a reorganisation to rationalise
its structure in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the GEM. Details of the Group Reorganisation have
been set out in the section headed “Corporate Reorganisation”
in Appendix VI of the prospectus issued by the Company on

June 21, 2000 (the “Prospectus”).

The Phoenix Group after the Group Reorganisation is regarded
as a continuing entity. Accordingly, the financial statements of
the Phoenix Group have been prepared on the merger
accounting basis as if the Company had always been the holding

company of the Phoenix Group.

All material intra-group transactions and balances have been

eliminated on consolidation.

2o PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Basis of presentation

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and in accordance with
Statements of Standard Accounting Practice issued by
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

In the current year, the Phoenix Group has adopted, for
the first time, the Statements of Standard Accounting
Practice (“SSAP”) Number 14 (revised) “Leases” issued
by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. SSAP 14
(revised) is in principle similar to the old SSAP 14
“Accounting for leases and hire purchase contracts” The
major change from the old SSAP that is applicable to
the Group is in respect of the disclosure requirements

of respective leases.
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2o PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b.

Turnover and revenue recognition
Turnover mainly represents income from advertising
sales and subscription sales.

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with a transaction will flow to the Phoenix
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue and other income are
recognised on the following bases:

(i) Advertising revenue represents the gross value of
advertisements broadcast and is recognised when
the relevant advertisements are broadcast.

(ii) Subscription revenue received or receivable from
the cable distributors or agents is amortised on a
time proportion basis. Unamortised portion is
classified as deferred income.

(iii) Magazine advertising revenue represents the value
of advertisements printed on the magazines and
is recognised when the magazine is published.

(iv) Magazine subscription revenue represents
subscription money received or receivable from
magazine customers and is recognised when the
respective magazine is published.

(v) Equipment rental income is recognised based on
the right to receive rental payment in accordance
with the terms of the rental contracts.

(vi) Interest income from bank deposits is recognised
on a time proportion basis on the principal
outstanding and at the rate applicable.

Inventories
Inventories, comprising decoder devices, are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is based on the first-in, first-out cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Notes to the Financial Statements MFs &M | @
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C.

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising
from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Self-produced programmes

Self-produced programmes are stated at cost less
provision for obsolescence where considered necessary
by the Directors. Cost comprises the production costs
of the programmes which consist of direct expenditure
and an appropriate portion of production overheads.
The production costs of the self-produced programmes
are charged to the income statement upon the first
showing of the programmes.

Purchased programme and film rights

Purchased programme and film rights and the related
accruals are recorded at cost. The cost of purchased
programmes and films is charged to the income
statement either on the first and second showing of such
purchased programmes and films or amortised over the
licence period if the licence allows multiple showings
within the licence period. Programme and film rights
with a remaining licence period of twelve months or
less are classified as current assets.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after the fixed assets
have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally charged to
the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of the fixed asset.
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2o PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f.

Fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis at
annual rates estimated to write off the cost of each asset
over its expected useful life. The annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements GER-R/E 3
Furniture and fixtures AL B[] 7€ 4 B
Office equipment N
Broadcast operations and JiE 5 7 7 T

engineering equipment TFE s
Motor vehicles HEH

When assets are sold or retired, their costs and
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the
accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their
disposals is included in the income statement.

Subsidiaries

A company is a subsidiary company if more than 50%
of the issued voting capital is held long-term, directly
or indirectly. In the Company’s balance sheet, interests
in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for
impairment in value where considered necessary by the
Directors. The results of the subsidiaries are included in
the income statement of the Company to the extent of
dividends declared by the subsidiaries.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided under the liability method,
at the current tax rate, in respect of the timing
differences between profit as computed for taxation
purposes and profit as stated in the financial statements,
including cumulative tax losses which are available to
relief future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset is not
recognised unless the related benefits are expected to
crystallise in the foreseeable future. A deferred tax
liability is recognised except where it is considered that
no liability will arise in the foreseeable future.

Operating leases

Leases are classified as operating leases whenever
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the leased assets remain with the lessor.

Lease payments under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of
incentives on operating leases is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Notes to the Financial Statements MFs &M |
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

J.

Foreign currency

The books and records of the companies within the
Phoenix Group are maintained in Hong Kong dollars.
Transactions in other currencies during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at exchange rates in
effect at the time of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in other currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences are dealt with in the income
statements of the individual companies.

Defined contribution plans

The Phoenix Group provides defined contribution plans
based on local laws and regulations. The plans cover
full-time employees and provide for contribution
ranging from 5% to 10% of salary. The Phoenix Group’s
contributions to defined contribution plans are charged
to income in the year to which they relate.

REVENUE
An analysis of the Phoenix Group’s revenue by nature is as
follows:
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A E # o 2 BRI A IR

Phoenix Group

J R 4 1
2001 2000
SRR TERLAE
$°000 $°000
T # i T T
Advertising sales & 4 8 B 674,350 485,654
Subscription sales W AR 2 5 29,887 25,182
Magazine advertising and subscription sales A 56 R A R 7,821 506
Equipment rental income i A AH 4B Ui A 1,284 -
Others HAth 345 -
Total revenue A 713,687 511,342



Notes to the Financial Statements MFs &M |

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BEALZRY
Parties are considered to be related to the Phoenix Group if A B I8 A g 0 E 9 i A o 42 o
the Phoenix Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to N o SR H BB 58 P e IR
control the parties or exercise significant influence over the NEAT TR B R » BRZINR » B
parties in making financial and operating decisions, or vice TR\ JE B 1 R e N o 52 B A (] 42 o] s R
versa, or where the Phoenix Group and the parties are subject A RN A 2 SRR R T A B
to common control or common significant influence. Related o B AR DU A SE R - 7EH
parties may be individuals or entities. In the normal course of B R E N o EURUSE ) B B R
business, the Phoenix Group had the following significant TRINEELY -
transactions with the related parties:
Phoenix Group
J L 4 1
2001 2000
SRR 4 TERLAE
Notes $°000 $°000
I 7 T # i T T
Office premises rental paid to Satellite 2 T & %
Television Asian Region Limited AR R R F
E itk ab 7,376 7,692
Service charges paid to Satellite AT 1 R A
Television Asian Region Limited A PR 2 A i ik 5 a, ¢ 113,145 76,393
Commission for international ST T 1 R A
advertising sales and marketing A R 2 A i B
services paid to Satellite Television JEE 4 88 5 K T 5
Asian Region Limited B IR 5 A 8 a, d 11,075 8,504
Commission for international AT 1 R A
subscription sales and marketing A R 2 A i B
services paid to Satellite Television I F & KL
Asian Region Limited B IR 5 A < a, e 1,447 1,025
Film licence fees paid to STAR TV AT STAR TV Filmed
Filmed Entertainment Limited Entertainment Limited
(1) B8 5% W HE 2 a, f 20,388 29,402
Programme licence fees paid to other 2 {5 T #i 4& [8] (A
STAR TV group companies HAth A =) 2 i B
] # a, g 920 8,144
Programme licence fees paid to SCAT T R Y R R AR
ATV Enterprises Limited AR A E
GiCIE g h 6,125 7,236
Programme licence fees received ] 55 P 7 A AR
from ATV Enterprises Limited A PR 2w i By
B B & Al & h = (28)
Commission paid to Shenzhou ST T AN B N/A
Television Limited A BR 2 A AR 4 5] v Bl 10,804
Service charges paid to Shenzhou ST T AN B N/A
Television Limited A R 2 A i ik 5 i, k A% 31,042
Service charges paid to Sino ST T AN B
Television (HK) Limited (F ) AR A A N/A
9 Ml 5 2 L m A% 10,054
Service charges paid to Fox News A ¥ Fox News
Network L.L.C. Network L.L.C.
9 Ml 5 2 n, o0 715 -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Phoenix Group provided certain film rights and
programmes to Phoenix Chinese News and Entertainment
Limited (“PCNE”) at no charge since the date of the conditional
agreement as disclosed in Note 16.

Notes:

The Directors confirmed that all of the above related party transactions
are carried out in the normal course of business of the Phoenix Group.

a. Satellite Television Asian Region Limited, STAR TV Filmed
Entertainment Limited and other STAR TV group companies
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the STAR TV Group.

b. Office premises rental paid to Satellite Television Asian Region
Limited was determined by reference to the area of space
occupied by the Phoenix Group and was proportional to the
rental payable by Satellite Television Asian Region Limited in

respect of the area occupied by it under its lease with the
landlord.

c. Service charges paid to Satellite Television Asian Region
Limited cover the following services provided to the Phoenix
Group which are charged based on the terms as specified under
various service agreements. Either fixed fees or variable fees
are charged depending on the type of facilities utilised
including the following:

. transponder capacity;

. network;

J broadcast operations and engineering;

. uplink and downlink; and

. general administrative and other support (induding

access to, and the use of, general office facilities,
management information system and commercial
traffic).

d. The commission for international advertising sales and
marketing services paid to Satellite Television Asian Region
Limited is based on 20% (2000 — 20%) of the net advertising
income generated and received by it on behalf of the Phoenix
Group after deducting the relevant amount of the third party
agency fees incurred by it.

e. The commission for international subscription sales and
marketing services paid to Satellite Television Asian Region
Limited is based on 15% (2000 — 15%) of the subscription
fees generated and received by it on behalf of the Phoenix
Group.

f. The film licence fees are charged in accordance with a film
rights acquisition agreement with STAR TV Filmed
Entertainment Limited.

g. The programme licence fees paid to and received from other
STAR TV group companies and ATV Enterprises Limited are
negotiated on a case-by-case basis.

BEANLRS (4)

F B 5k 16 0T 48 2 A A0 W k] L 2 1%
JEL JEL 4 [ % 2 ) Phoenix Chinese News
and Entertainment Limited ([ PCNE]) 2

WETHA WML -
Wit -

AN F H AR > BT A bk B R 5 T R R
JESE T ¥ IE S 6B R AEAT

a. WA BEHRAMRAR -~ STAR TV

Filmed Entertainment Limited A i #5
AN A A w2 4 AR 4R Y
£ 4N PAi

b. MR EERA RS R NS T

W) 2R 42 ) 2 75 R R4 T A T B9 T
e E > f Bl B AR A AR
482 A 1) B2 = A ELAY A5 T B4
JRE A B9 A 42 1 IE LR A

c. ST R AL A R4 R R B

B4 T 51 436 L 5% I R AR
e 5 77 A 4% 118 51 bk i Y A A6 S5 i
B o E RSB WA - W T
5 A 5% it 250 1T A

o BB R TR
« ERRTFA R
o BABURAALEE (@

i A0 — e R
i~ A BRI A M e
A% o

d. S A B TR AR A R I B R
e B B B T 4 A R IR S 09 4 42 U9 AR
1 A 3% JR AR TR e TR % o Y R
el AR R (B 30RR HE AR =07
OB 1 209% (= FE E 4 — 20%)
FHE o

e. S A R AR A BR S Y Y R T
J5 & B K T 4 R IR S 1) R 4 U AR
1 AR 3% R A TR A TR o 2 Y
15% (= FEFAFE —15%) 75 o

f. N HE IR YR BLSTAR TV
Filmed Entertainment Limited#] 57 ff

HE A 52 1 W HE B el SR

g 16 7 A4 4 IR TA) CEG At 2 ) S B R A
1> 2 A B A T ST B B H R Y
e 5 28 5 T e



4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

h.

Mr. LIU, Changle and Mr. CHAN, Wing Kee, own
approximately 14% and 18% indirect interest of ATV
Enterprises Limited respectively as at June 30, 2001.

Mr. CHUI, Keung, a Director of the Company, owned 16%
interest and was one of the Directors of Shenzhou Television
Limited. Mr. CHUI disposed of all of his interest in and
resigned as a Director of Shenzhou Television Limited on May
11, 2000. Since then, Shenzhou Television Limited is no longer
a related party to the Phoenix Group and the transactions
with Shenzhou Television Limited in the current year are not
disclosed.

The commission for collection of advertising sales paid to
Shenzhou Television Limited was based on an average of 3%
on the sales amount collected for the year ended June 30,
2000.

The service charges paid to Shenzhou Television Limited
represent the sales and marketing services provided by it and

was charged based on 4% of the advertising sales made by it
for the year ended June 30, 2000.

Sino Television (HK) Limited is a 99.98% owned subsidiary
of Shenzhou Television Limited. With the resignation of Mr.
CHUI, Keung as a Director of Shenzhou Television Limited
on May 11, 2000, Sino Television (HK) Limited is no longer a
related party to the Phoenix Group and the transactions with
Sino Television (HK) Limited in the current year are not
disclosed.

Service charges paid to Sino Television (HK) Limited were
determined based on the actual cost incurred by Sino
Television (HK) Limited for recruitment services performed.

Fox News Network L.L.C. (“Fox”) is an associate of STAR
Television Holdings Limited, which owns approximately 37.6%
interest in the Company.

Service charges paid to Fox cover the following services
provided to the Phoenix Group which are charged based on
the terms as specified under a service agreement:

. granting of non-exclusive and non-transferable licence
to subscribe Fox’s news service;

. leasing of office space; and

. accessing Fox’s camera hook up at the United Nations,

interview positions in various places in the United
States and live shots from Fox’s satellite truck positions
for events that Fox is already covering, subject to
availability.

Notes to the Financial Statements MFs &M |

4. BH
h.

O

ALY ()

CIRSE Sl dl I Sita oy 2o
—HEXNA=1H > HRl#EAEENE
A A BR 2 7 £114% M 18%H [H] 4%
HEE o

AT Z EEEE A - ANE
WA RA A 2 ERREAH16%2
Witi o R-FZRFFERHA+—H#
5 A e 5% L w4 A BR A T BT
WA R R R
H o Bt WO ERGRAF A
Jo A TR SE RO B AN £ o A A
] A A AR B 2 58 5 I A R e

57 1M AR AR A R 2 i
EaEmiE  ARBEREE_Z
TRAEN A =+ H Ik 4E 88
F-3%5 5 -

i o M WL A BR A 7 2 BB
F o B LR B B i B 2 MR
o HRE#HE FRTENH=
T H IR AR R s R Y R A A 2
4%FHE o

T AR (A E) AT PR A ] 2 N TR
AT RN T B AT 99.989% 5% HE A Kff &
AT e BEE TR BT RAE
HH A+ — H BN ERA R A
MR MU E R (F ) A BRA A
T P 2 Jr A A B N L > T R
7 4 i B AN B AR (F s) AT PR
Z G IRAANE W

FF T M B (Fits) AR A R 2 iR
5 I HR S ROB 2 BB S -

Fox News Network L.L.C. (“Fox”) J3
STAR Television Holdings Limited.Z
B ol > A A A T £937.6% 2
HE 25 o

AT Fox ¥ 1 55 2 B4 T 51 £ 44 7
JER RS2 [ ST AR B o MRS T 4% T
a1 WY O R M 2

U i FAFox3#h M IR 5 2 3 18 K
SENGELS T

o WA B S R

o AR m] M T 8 Fox 07 i
XL EEEWN - Ko
DL K A ] Fox i A2 T 4% B
o7 AT B3 O o
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B BE B A Y B R 23 i ik A
WA 8 .2 S S i i UG A
I 51 R R

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION AND MINORITY INTERESTS 5.
Profit before taxation and minority interests is determined after
crediting and charging the following:

Phoenix Group

J L A 1
2001 2000
TRR A CRRRE
$’°000 $°000
T # 5 F T
Crediting : et A
Gain on disposals of fixed assets th B [ g B E UK A 111 -
Exchange gain, net T 58 0 4 13 AE 2,091 1,647
Interest income on bank deposits SRAT A7 2OM B A 47,106 1,205
Charging : FSEN]
Programme amor tisation costs CORER: $ )N 31,076 32,007
Programme production costs i H AR A 81,391 60,878
Transponder rental gt AR A 4 26,785 21,331
Licence fees o A 2 22,765 36,069
Provision for bad debts R SR B 15,598 15,874
Staffing costs (induding Directors’ ik & B4
emoluments) (G045 3 F I 4)
— salaries and allowances — ¥4 Mo 131,239 70,391
— pension fund — B IK 4 6,188 3,479
Operating lease rental in respect of: %% % FH % [ 52
— Directors’ quarters —#HRFE 956 819
— land and buildings of —HEE
third parties Je w5 4,177 399
— land and buildings of a related — B A R 2
company (Note 4) K 2 5 (Bt 4) 7,376 7,692
Depreciation of fixed assets [ 2 & AT 7,429 1,137
Interest expenses in respect of AR AT Bk 2
short term bank loan FIE B 2 15 -
Auditors’ remuneration 1% LRI P 4 1,100 900



6.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS 6.
a.

Directors’ emoluments

Notes to the Financial Statements MFs &M |

Details of emoluments paid to the Directors of the
Company by the Phoenix Group and disclosed pursuant
to Section 161(1) of the Companies Ordinance and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange were as follows:

o 8 B v B AT BON BB

a.

o o 4

JR RS A A 2 ] AR
P88 RS 161 (1) Wk K Wk 22 i
A 36 B TR B 2R A 5 2 P

EREGMT

Phoenix Group

J L A 1

2001 2000
e SEFEA
$’°000 $°000
T # 5 F o

Executive Director A: WATESRH
Fees 18 4,146 3,713
Salaries ¥ - -
Discretionary bonus i) 1% 55 A A€ 4L 1,198 1,165
Quarters 18 & 956 819
Other allowance At 114 -
Pension fund LERYNE S - _
6,414 5,697

Executive Director B: HWITHEBE L -
Fees i 48 — =
Salaries ¥ 1,499 2,046
Discretionary bonus T 1 % T30 R A6 AL 761 485
Housing allowance 7 2 A 804 -
Other allowance At 109 -
Pension fund LERYNES 150 117
3,323 2,648

During the year, no emoluments were paid to Non-
executive Directors of the Company (2000 — Nil) and
approximately $300,000 (2000 — Nil) were paid to two
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The number of Directors whose remuneration fall within

L SATN RN NN U P R -
TEAHT AT 4 o AT 3 48 5T
JE AT 2B 2 4 4 £5300,0009
TG (BB TAE — ) o

P <= A <P 5 R A N B

the following bands were as follows: mE
2001 2000
SRR AR ZRETAR
Up to $1,000,000 % —1,000,0007T 2 =
$2,500,001 — $3,000,000 2,500,0017C — 3,000,000 7 = 1
$3,000,001 — $3,500,000 3,000,0017C — 3,500,000 JC 1 =
$5,500,001 — $6,000,000 5,500,0017C — 6,000,000 G = 1
$6,000,001 — $6,500,000 6,000,0017C — 6,500,000 JC 1 =

There was no arrangement under which a Director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year ended June 30, 2001.

WEZELE—EANHA=Z1H IR
LN > M AT A7 2 Bk B R
il B IR S AR AT AT M o
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS 6.

(Continued)

b. Five highest paid individuals

Details of emoluments paid to the five highest paid
individuals including two Directors and three other
senior executives (2000 — two Directors and three other

employees) were as follows:

o 8 B v B AT BN B 8 (4)

b.

Ao 35 v A

SIRVASE-E NS R i o
FEREHBBTBANER (ZFF
TR WL E R K= BT
HAB) BMeREEmT

Phoenix Group

JL R 4 1

2001 2000

TRR A CRRRE

$’°000 $°000

T # 1 + o

Fees 14 4,146 3,713

Salaries W& 6,347 7,928

Discretionary bonus i) 1% B ) AE AL 4,132 3,144

Housing allowance =3 EREd 3,204 —

Quarters 18 & 956 819

Other allowance HCAth v B 223 -

Pension fund LERY NG 636 446
19,644

The number of the five highest paid individuals
(including two Directors and three senior executives)
whose remuneration fall within the following bands were

16,050

P <5 A T N B 4 I A AL B
W N (RLHEW (L3 I =1
MATHANR) WF

as follows:
2001 2000
SRR CEEEA
$2,000,001 — $2,500,000 2,000,0017C — 2,500,0007C = 1
$2,500,001 — $3,000,000 2,500,0017C — 3,000,0007C 1 3
$3,000,001 — $3,500,000 3,000,0017C — 3,500,0007C 2 =
$3,500,001 — $4,000,000 3,500,0017C — 4,000,0007C 1 =
$5,500,001 — $6,000,000 5,500,0017C — 6,000,0007C - 1
$6,000,001 — $6,500,000 6,000,0017C 6,500,0007C 1 =

No incentive payment for joining the Phoenix Group or
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to
any Director or the other employees amongst the five
highest paid individuals for the year ended June 30, 2001.

EHRE_FEFFAA=1TH
b 4F B - JRRAE Sl 4 37 I
A2 S A B T L e A
£ AT 2 AR B D
8 7 T ARG 2 [ ) 5 JR) = AR
Ry BT o



7.

TAXATION
Taxation in the consolidated income statement consisted of:

Notes to the Financial Statements MFs &M | @

BE B
AR RGBT -

Phoenix Group

JL R 4 1
2001 2000
e BB
$’°000 $°000
T # 5 F i T
Current taxation 7 A BE B IH
— Hong Kong profits tax —HHBMEH 1,064 -
— The People’s Republic of China — o B A 2E T 45 Bl
(the “PRC”) enterprise
income tax 203 -
— United States Federal and States tax — 35 [ W S BT B 89 -
1,356 -
Deferred taxation A JiE i TH
— Hong Kong profits tax —HFHBMEH 252 -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16%
(2000 — 16%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Hong Kong. Overseas taxation has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

Deferred taxation represents the taxation effect of timing
differences arising from accelerated depreciation allowances.

As at June 30, 2001, the Phoenix Group had estimated
cumulative tax losses for Hong Kong profits tax purpose which,
subject to the agreement by the Inland Revenue Department,
can be carried forward indefinitely to offset against future
taxable profits. The potential deferred tax asset, subject to the
agreement by the Inland Revenue Department of the amount
of tax losses, has not been recognised in the financial statements
of the Phoenix Group.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders includes a
profit of approximately $4,298,000 (2000 — $54,000) dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share is calculated based on consolidated profit
attributable to shareholders for the year of $53,984,944 (2000
— $50,314,653) and the 4,926,394,652 (2000 — 4,121,991,945)
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year ended June 30, 2001.

1,608 =

F W A AF BT #2072 Al EE
SRS A 0 LL16% (% T EAE —16%)
Bl 58 M o W SNBLIH T AR IR A E 2
At w1 HE R B s A 4% 45w VR R IR 2 8 T
Bl R FHH o

U S 5 L 25y N TR BT 5 G B A 5 | B IR ]
ZHBLBRR -

HEFE—AERNA=Z1TH  UFERE
BLIH - RR AR F A E A R B
B BB R SRR o A R A DL
R TH A AR 7 BB < B A o VA LR IR
W E - BRI A BLRS e 1R
AR TR RS T ) B B R R o

JBE 3 HE A Wi A

JBE SRR A % 5 v R L R EAAE AR S R B S
i 2% i B 2 i B 44,298,000 00 (- EE
FAF 1 54,0009 70) e

5 8t 2 A

A5 1 8 R T AR R AR A B R R A 4 s
F 53,984,944750 (= F F F4E
50,314,65370) it “FEF—4FNH =1
H 1k 45 B i Bk 2 3% 40 A% o #E T 359 i B
4,926,394,652/ (= F T % 4
4,121,991,9451%) 75 o
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 9. &R ()
Diluted earnings per share is calculated based on consolidated HE AR 2 19 R AL A T AR R A 4R 2 TR
profit attributable to shareholders for the year of $53,984,944 JE Ak 45 A Vi F153,984,944% 7C (ZFFEF
(2000 — $50,314,653) and the diluted weighted average number 4 : 50,314,653 J0) M ARAE FEE 85 1T
of ordinary shares of 4,951,776,317 (2000 — 4,121,991,945) in By Z I RE T3 #04,951,776,317 (=%
issue during the year. It has been calculated after taking into FTAE ¢ 4,121,991,945) FH5E o HEFHA
account the outstanding share options during the year ended NERE B FEAENH = H IR E
June 30, 2001. The effect of the dilution resulting from the RAT 2 BEREAE o 1) RAT 1 2 B A i )
outstanding share options on the weighted average number of ASAE B BT 2 % 8 B 2 InhEE S
ordinary shares in issue during the year is an additional BB - NG N25,381,665 (—FEER
25,381,665 (2000 — Nil) shares. These shares are deemed to be A ) B o IRAE BB AR AR A S HE A
issued at no consideration on the date when the share options ®H > DAmA AT -
were granted.
The reconciliation of number of ordinary shares is as follows: e Ry B H R R
Phoenix Group
JAL AR T
2001 2000
SRR 4 TERLAE
$°000 $°000
T# T
Weighted average number of LA w53 R A
ordinary shares used in calculating Z 0 HE - £ % 2 %
basic earnings per share Ji& # 4,926,394,652 4,121,991,945
Deemed issue of ordinary shares for no  #% 5 { DA 48 fX (&
consideration BEAT I 4 % 25,381,665 —
Weighted average number of ordinary  Jf Dk 51 54 #3545
shares used in calculating diluted Ji 288 ) 6 fin hE
earnings per share V- 25 8 5 1 % B 4,951,776,317 4,121,991,945
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET 10. MK I i
Phoenix Group
JAL AR T
2001 2000
SRR 4 TERLAE
$°000 $°000
T # i T oT
Accounts receivable JAEE i 3K I 158,580 102,886
Less: Provision for bad debts W SRR B (35,935) (20,337)
122,645 82,549
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 11, AR - 3546 K 3 fib M ok

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables is an
amount of approximately $128,537,000 (2000 — $97,133,000)
owing from an advertising agent in the PRC. This advertising
agent promotes the sales of the Phoenix Group’s advertising
air-time and programme sponsorship and collects advertising
revenues within the PRC on behalf of the Phoenix Group. The
amount represents advertising revenue collected by the
advertising agent on behalf of the Phoenix Group.

b |

TH AT 3RIE ~ i G B At JRE Wi E G —
S M i r [ A AR 2 R JE 49128,537,000
JC (. FEE T 1 97,133,00008) © UL JE
TP A R 1 B TR B (9 Y R A R B %
i B R R R AR I i B ) B A
B R Wi g o L R TR AR R R 4 AR 2 TR
JE 4B I i B R S U g5 o
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13.
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED COMPANIES 12, MW OREAS) BB 2 ) sk o5
The outstanding balances with related companies are unsecured, FE T (REARH) R g 2 W 2 AR 4 - AR
non-interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms. SRS I [ R R -
PURCHASED PROGRAMME AND FILM RIGHTS 13, Ji NS0 H B 56 5 Jo i
Phoenix Group
JL AR 1
2001 2000
SRR 4 TERLAE
$°000 $°000
T#x T T
Cost WA 171,727 130,002
Accumulated amortisation BT 4 (124,567) (93,491)
47,160 36,511
Less: Purchased programme and o BEAE H K E
film rights — current portion i HE — 5 1A A (10,645) (16,670)
Purchased programme and film W A Bl H M ORE
rights — non-current portion — = #0145 36,515 19,841
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FIXED ASSETS 14. R ¥ A
Movements in fixed assets of the Phoenix Group during the JBVE SR B AR N 2 E B A R
year were as follows:
2001 2000
SRR “ERRE
Broad cast
operation and
Leasehold Furniture Office  engineering Motor
improvements  and fixtures equipment equipment vehicles Total Total
%
REHE 1191 Ha % RIH
kB kE i fi i fi Tl it it
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $2000
Tt Tk Tt Tt Tk Tt Tk
Cost WA
Beginning of year 4£-4] 1,492 763 3,822 - 1,750 7,827 5,080
Additions WNE 13,666 2,289 29,416 32,546 4,325 82,242 2,747
Disposals & - - = = (1,750) (1,750) =
Reclassification L5 - - (1,677) 1,677 - - -
End of year & 15,158 3,052 31,561 34,223 4,325 88,319 7,827
Accumulated RRUE
depreciation
Beginning of year ) 753 302 894 1,320 3,269 2,132
Charge for the year 4 [J#7 & 1,053 380 3,160 558 7,429 1,137
Disposals & - - = (1,535) (1,535) =
Reclassification 7% - - (140) - - -
End of year FR 1,806 682 3914 343 9,163 3,269
Net book value W Jii ¥
End of year R 13,352 2,370 27,647 31,805 3,982 79,156 4,558
Beginning of year ) 739 461 2,928 430 4,558 2,948
LAND DEPOSIT 15. L&

On June 11, 2001, a subsidiary of the Company entered into an
agreement with G Y| 77 #1 #| B 1= /5 (The Shenzhen National
Land Planning Bureau) to acquire a land use right on a parcel
of land situated in Shenzhen, the PRC for the development of
a building for the Phoenix Group. Pursuant to the payment
terms of the agreement, an amount of approximately
$29,177,000 has been paid to the I T # #| B 15 (The
Shenzhen National Land Planning Bureau) as the first
installment. The Phoenix Group is committed to pay
approximately $28,177,000 as the final installment no later than
June 13, 2003 (please see Note 22f).

AN E KA AR RN A
- — H HL G T AR R T M —
B A7 b B I 2 1 AR RS R
BUE K E 2 1 o 1% Wi i g o
AT DI R # Bt SR 2 A A
£529,177,0007C © Bl B 5E [ 55 R iR
EEZAFNH = H 8T 428,177,000
WG 0 AR — R (R RE 220 -
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17.
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LOAN TO A RELATED COMPANY 16. B2 W] fak
The amount represents unsecured and interest-free loan to M R T 7y SIS AT K e B AR 3K T Phoenix
Phoenix Chinese News and Entertainment Limited (“PCNE”) Chinese News and Entertainment Limited
pursuant to a conditional acquisition agreement entered into ([PCNEJ) » HAR4E th PCNEBL A i R
between Techvast Limited, the existing shareholder of PCNE, Techvast Limited % B\ B\ % [ i~ — JLJL L
and the Phoenix Group on July 11, 1999. Pursuant to this B A+ — B B — BB ARk
agreement, it is envisaged that Phoenix Satellite Television W e o AR AR UL T s > T LS JRL LR A5
(Europe) Limited and Techvast Limited will subscribe for 70% BRI & A PR/ 7] S Techvast Limited € 43
and 30%, respectively, of the share capital of a newly established B B — I B B 4 ) 19 70% 1309
company which will acquire 100% of the share capital of PCNE AR o T4 T 9] Techvast Limited i 5
from Techvast Limited. Pursuant further to such agreement, PCNE 100%/8 4 o #4500 ik - RS
the Phoenix Group was committed to provide aggregate funding 7 M PCNEFE ik = 4F & & » HAECR
of not less than US$8.4 million to PCNE for three years starting DIR8.4AT WK IT o H 199948 H B ih
from August 1999 with an annual funding of not less than BAEGE R R DR2.8EH HEIC > &K
US$2.8 million in the form of an unsecured interest-free loan P Rt BB (B gk22d) o BT
(Note 22d). The loan is repayable by PCNE only after PCNE PCNEZE A= i FI| 79 45 4% If 42 3K B R
generates a net profit. The recoverability of this loan amount THRE G PR [ - Ak APCNE B AL B4R
is, therefore, dependent on the expected future benefits from VL 61 T[] 205 SR T S 2 P TR S 4 o TR
the synergy of PCNE and the Phoenix Group. The acquisition 4 F W B PCNERY A7 ) T8 A 74 R 2k B
of PCNE by the Phoenix Group is expected to be completed SERR > R 2% JBRASE i B BT AR 45 A B
within the next couple of months because management of the 75 Tl R BT R SE T o i
Phoenix Group believes that the parties to the agreement have i 52 W IEF - PCNE 6 i 2% JBL L 4 ] f) B
resolved all outstanding issues. Upon completion of the J& 22\ o Ui EPCNE BT /28 A= 1Y 7 2 9
acquisition, PCNE will become a subsidiary of the Phoenix 5y > RARGE AT W BB A - 52 AP Al
Group. Any goodwill arising from the acquisition of PCNE HWEZ AR -
will be subject to amortisation and a periodic assessment of
any potential impairment in value, based on an evaluation of
the recoverable amount.
In addition, the Phoenix Group is committed to loan a further & > BOE &L BT APCNER it
$23,839,000 to PCNE in order to fund its operation, again on 23,839,000%5 7C - 3 HEEEE > I8
an unsecured and interest-free basis (Note 22d). Should the S HCAT K ) S (B 5E22d) - 0 i B A7
acquisition transaction not be completed, it is unlikely that the B RBESE AL > MUHIMRE R & A ek
loan will be recoverable, and the full amount will have to be [|] > T A R K T o e o LB R
written off. Management is of the opinion that, should the By o QUSRI o AR R R EL ] o
acquisition be completed, the full amount of the loan will be
recoverable.
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. KB 2 W HE
Company
AR
2001 2000
SRR 4 TERLAE
$°000 $°000
T # i T oT
Unlisted shares, at cost e S RN = -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFEE Wi g s W) 3k I 1,214,837 1,235,619
1,214,837 1,235,619

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed repayment terms.

The Company has undertaken to provide necessary financial
resources to support the future operations of the subsidiaries.
The Directors are of the opinion that the underlying value of
the subsidiaries was not less than the carrying amount of the
subsidiaries as at June 30, 2001.

B A A 2 ) RO 2 IR - 60 B R A
1] 7 % I o

A ) (R A2 0 B U L S
%&ﬂ*%%’@ ° %%%{fﬁ, , W}%/Aﬁj
2B AR MG o 8 7 e % —
AR Z+HZIRE(E -
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Details of subsidiaries as at June 30, 2001 were as follows:

Name of subsidiary

W 2+ W) 44

Hong Kong Phoenix Weekly
Magazine Limited

i BRI A R A A

Phoenix Satellite Television
(InfoNews) Limited
JBL R & R A AR A

Phoenix Satellite Television
(B.V.I.) Holding Limited

Phoenix Satellite Television
(Chinese Channel) Limited
JBL B A5 S0 B A R

Phoenix Satellite Television
Company Limited
JBLJE A LA R

Phoenix Satellite Television
(Europe) Limited
JELEL B LR & A BR A A

Phoenix Satellite Television
Information Limited

JBURE A R

Phoenix Satellite Television
(Movies) Limited
BEEGREY &HRAR

Phoenix Satellite Television
Trademark Limited
(formerly known as
Binji Overseas Limited)

Phoenix Satellite Television
Trademark Limited
(i FBinji Overseas
Limited

Place of
incorporation and
operations and date
of incorporation

wl W8 S B
B/
A AR

Hong Kong

November 29, 1999

i
—AANEFr—AZF A

British Virgin Islands
September 6, 1999
S8 pE LR
—AANENARHA

British Virgin Islands
April 28, 1998
S8 b LR
—AANENA =+ AH

British Virgin Islands

June 29, 1998
JEJE b LR
—ANERAZ+ A

Hong Kong

November 16, 1995

i
—AAAEF—HAFAH

British Virgin Islands
July 5,1999
S8 b LR
—AANELARH

British Virgin Islands
September 1, 1999
JEJE b LR
—AANENA—H

British Virgin Islands

June 26, 1998
S8 bE LR
—RANEAAZ+AH

British Virgin Islands
January 8, 1996
Y8 b LR
—RAARE—HANH

17.

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/

registered capital
CH#T R

BRBA
it Tk ¥ A

$100
1007C

US$1
1370

US$1
1370

US$1
1370

$20
2078

US$1
1370

US$1
IEH

US$1
IEH

US$1
IEH

B ) 2 ) HE 4 (A7)
R BB A =+ H 2 W2 73

HaE

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Phoenix

Group
J L4

HE A% DBt A
[t Xpig

55%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

EX =3

Publishing and
distribution of
periodicals

R AT

Satellite television
broadcasting

R BV G

Investment holding

BB

Satellite television
broadcasting

R EHEE

Provision of
management and
related services

o {8 B e A B R S

Investment holding

BB

Investment holding

BB

Satellite television
broadcasting

i B EHR AR

Trademark holding
RN



17.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

W 2 W) 44

Phoenix Weekly Magazine
(BVI) Limited

PHOENIXi Investment Limited

PHOENIXj, Inc.

Phoenix Satellite Television
Development (BVI) Limited

Phoenix Satellite Television
Development Limited

BRRHL g REARA A

PCNE Holdings Limited

Phoenix Satellite Television

(Taiwan) Limited

HELAR S e A PR 22

Phoenix Satellite Television
(Universal) Limited

Phoenix Satellite Television
(U.S.) Inc.

Place of
incorporation and
operations and date
of incorporation

wl W8 S B
B/

ik I8 3% H 39

British Virgin Islands
January 24, 2000
S8 b LR
~ER2E— = +MH

British Virgin Islands
October 28,1999
S8 b LR
—“AANEFTAZFAH

The United States of America
June 3, 1999

I B 5 R
—AANEAAZH

British Virgin Islands
January 6, 2000
S8 b R
“EERFE-AKN

Hong Kong

April 16, 1999

ik
—JUASEEA 73 H

British Virgin Islands
January 5, 2000
S8 b LR
“EERFE-ATN

British Virgin Islands
August 31, 2000
S8 b TR
“ERREANA=Z+—H

British Virgin Islands
July 18, 2000
S8 b LR
SEFFELATAR

The United States of America
September 7, 2000

5 B A
“RFRELALH

Notes to the Financial Statements MFs &M |

17.

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
CHAT R

Bt RA

it ik ¥ A

US$1
1370

US$123,976

(Ordinary Shares)

US$7,500

(Series A
Preferred Shares)
123,976 G
(7@ k)
7,500 TG

(A #16 %R)

US$0.1
0.1% T

US$1
1370

$2
276

US$2
2FE 0

US$1
IEH

US$1
1370

US$1
1370

WY& 2w R 4R (A1)

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Phoenix
Group
TR A
HE A% DBt A
Bt T 2 I

100%

94.3%

94.3%

100%

100%

50%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

ERX =3

Investment holding

BB

Investment holding

BEEM

Internet services

ERCECNE

Investment holding

BEEM

Investment holding

BEEM

Investment holding

BEEM

Investment holding

TR

Investment holding

BB

Provision of
management and
promotional
related services

RALE T R R
i B R B
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. W2 6 b (4)
Percentage of
Place of Issued and equity interest
incorporation and fully paid attributable to
operations and date share capital/ the Phoenix
Name of subsidiary of incorporation registered capital Group  Principal activity
il I 8% 3 e CH AT R B4 M
R/ Bt meA HE A% DBt A
W 2 W) 44 ik R 3 1 3 it ik ¥ A MR A R
Guofeng On-line (Beijing) PRC US$500,000 94.3%  Internet services
Information Technology April 18, 2000 500,000 7o B 48 TR 5
Company Limited 24
BRESR (b5 5 B8t —“FFTHFNA+AH
AR F
Phoenix Film and Television PRC $10,000,000 60%  Ancillary services for
(Shenzhen) Company March 6, 2000 10,000,00075 programme
Limited 24 production
BERER FIN)AHRAFA  ZFFFFE=HANH i A1 B e 5

Note: Phoenix Satellite Television (B.V.I.) Holding Limited is directly Wi &
held by the Company, while all other subsidiaries are indirectly
held by the Company through Phoenix Satellite Television
(B.V.1.) Holding Limited.

Phoenix Satellite Television (B.V.I.)
Holding Limited H 7<% # & 4 5
A o T I A A BB 2 ) R A A
7 3% # Phoenix Satellite Television
(B.V.1.) Holding Limited [Hl # 54

SHARE CAPITAL 18. k% 2]):
2001 2000
SRR ZRETAR
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
It ¥ & I ¥ &
$°000 $°000
T # 1 + o
Authorised: B
Ordinary share of $0.1 each B I E0.10 7T
5 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: AT R EW
Beginning of year 4 4,847,060,000 484,706 — —
Exercise of over-allotment A7 {8 8 2 P
option (Note a) (ff & a) 83,908,000 8,391 = =
Exercise of share options 17 {1 % 624,000 62 - -
Redenomination of ordinary 4 1 {1 1.05 ©
shares of US$1.0 each 9 it 2 T (E
to $0.1 each OB 0.1 T - - 1,520 -
Capitalisation of amount 7 T A i 5 E
due to shareholders BIEEA - - 4,119,998,280 412,000
Shares exchange with AL I 0 M
a subsidiary - - 200 -
Public offering shares N B IR - - 72,706,000 7,271
Placement shares il - - 654,354,000 65,435
End of year K 4,931,592,000 493,159 4,847,060,000 484,706
Note: Mt
a. On July 21, 2000, the underwriters exercised the over-allotment a. ATERERELH Z—H > KA

option for the issuance of 83,908,000 ordinary shares of $0.1
each at $1.08 per share in accordance with the underwriting
agreement entered into by the underwriters, the Company and
others on June 20, 2000.

AT (7 4 O T DA R 108G B8 AT
BT (H0.10% T 2 ¥ Ak - 3t
83,908,000/% > HARIE SR > AL
TR HAb N LR B EEENH
+ H % B 8 Wk o
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SHARE OPTIONS 19, Jif B A
The Company has several share option schemes, under which AN F A B SRR ] o A2 R
it may grant options to employees of the Phoenix Group ] BUEVAE M R B (B A A Rl AT
(including Executive Directors of the Company) to subscribe HR) X7 AR AR A A B R
for shares of the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% at HE o T3 H B R HE T R I 2 B e S
the nominal value of the issued share capital of the Company SN /NI N FARE i &N
from time to time, excluding for this purpose, shares issued on {E230% » LRI AT i i Je i 47 2 I
exercise of options. The exercise price will be determined by B ARFHEIEN o AT B A A R 2
the Company’s Board of Directors, and will not be less than HRGRE MR RR R AR A
the higher of the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated T B JS v ) A ) S AR 2 i T A R
in the GEM daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, the TE XA A Bl B B B i T
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the 2o HIRAIER ZFIME > Bkhz
GEM daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days T B (LA i 2 7 HE ) o
immediately preceding the date of grant, and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares .
Movements of share options, during the year ended June 30, BE TN =1+ HILFEERKR
2001 were as follows: REZ BB -
Number of options
ok I3 % H
Lapsed as a
Granted Exercised result of
Beginning of during during termination of
Date of grant Exercise period  Subscription price year the year the year ~ employment  End ofyear
AL B L
g M 1 G R B 1 S 4 % A WAT B T K3 A
June 14, 2000 June 14,2001 to 1.087C 59,742,000 = (624,000) (1,782,000) 57,336,000
June 13,2010
“EERE “EE—F
AH+MEA AATHAZE
b S £:3
ARTZH
February 15,2001  February 15,2002 to 1.997C = 2,900,000 = = 2,900,000
February 14, 2011
“EE—F “EEE
ZAt+HH “AthHZE
—“E——F
“A+mA
59,742,000 2,900,000 (624,000) (1,782,000) 60,236,000

67



| Phoenix Annual Repor t ARk 2000-2001

RESERVES 20. Al
Phoenix Group JEL L 4
Movements in reserves of the Phoenix Group during the year T B A AR N > s s R

were as follows:

2001 2000
SRR AR CEEERA
Accumulated
Share premium deficit Total Total
JBe B iz 1 B i 5k 5t
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T # 7 T # 7 T # 7 + i o
Beginning of year AT 750,859 (355,762) 395,097 (406,077)
Profit attributable
to shareholders J B 41 Y ) - 53,984 53,984 50,315
Proceeds from exercise
of over-allotment A A T A E i 2
option (Note 18a) (Bff 5% 18a) 82,230 = 82,230 =
Proceeds from
public offering shares 7 Bl 5 Bt ik 25 - - - 71,252
Proceeds from
placement shares U = = = 641,267
Over-allotments,
placements and ST 7 T
public offering ~ R KA B
expenses paid & B 2 (8,996) = (8,996) (52,637)
Exercise of share options 17 i Jff i 611 - 611 —
Premium on shares issued i % 5 & 5% # 1
for shareholders’ loan BN E A 2
capitalisation 103 ¥ 1 - - = 90,977
End of year S 824,704 (301,778) 522,926 395,097
Company N/ |
Movements in reserves of the Company during the year were ARNFENZ BB IR
as follows:
2001 2000
SRR AR CEEERAF
Retained
Share premium profit Total Total
JBe B iz 11 B ¥ e A 5k 5t
$°000 $°000 $’°000 $°000
T # 7T T # 7 T # 7 F i o
Beginning of year ) 750,859 54 750,913 -
Profit for the year A B 3 A - 4,298 4,298 54
Proceeds from exercise of
over-allotment option 8 %A Pt [ #E Ui 2
(Note 18a) (Kt 7% 18a) 82,230 = 82,230 =
Proceeds from public
offering shares 7 B B B U A = = = 71,252
Proceeds from placement
shares v al = = = 641,267
Over-allotments, EL 5] 8 AH e A%
placements and public ~ At B A B
offering expenses paid B BB 2 (8,996) - (8,996) (52,637)
Exercise of share options 17 i I i # 611 - 611 —
Premium on shares issued i % 5 8 5% # 1
for shareholders’ AR A 2
loan capitalisation % 103 ¥ 1 - - = 90,977

End of year A 824,704 4,352 829,056 750,913
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21. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 21. A B 4EeR B Z W

a. Reconciliation of profit before taxation and minority a. 16 BE B A % 8% R B 35 T % A B K %
interests to net cash outflow from operating activities: IR B4 T R

Phoenix Group

J P4 1
2001 2000
ZRR AR ZEEERAF
$°000 $°000
T # 5 F o
(Note 25)
(Btf 7 25)
Profit before taxation and R Bt S D B R
minority interests HE % B ¥6s A1) 51,858 49,908
Add (Less): Jm () -
Interest expense on short term
bank loan A SR AT B8 R R B 2 15 =
Interest income on bank deposits SRAT 77 A Bl A (47,106) (1,205)
Depreciation of fixed assets ] 5 & AT 7,429 1,137
Gain on disposals of fixed assets 6 ] IR (111) =
Increase in accounts receivable, net JFEE iz B 3k 3 i (40,096) (39,373)
Decrease in inventories & WD 63 250
Increase in prepayments, deposits TEATH - R
and other receivables HC Al BB i R T B (59,344) (90,858)
(Increase) Decrease in amounts due JRE Wz R Tt 2 ) R
from related companies (¥&m) Wb (705) 34,679
Decrease in self-produced
programmes EESIRER %A 1,294 3,086
Increase in purchased programme
and film rights [ YNCINEDS & AT b (10,649) (5,293)
Increase in accounts payable
and accruals JRE A5 3K T K B w1 3Kk TE B4 9,335 12,386
Increase in deferred income 8 SIE WA B8 3,192 783
(Decrease) Increase in adver tising e e B 4 e
revenue received in advance (W Y) 1 (15,244) 43,706
Decrease in amounts due to
related companies JREAF B B 2 ) R T g D (4,066) (13,882)
Net cash outflow from
operating activities A0 2B T FE B & T AR (104,135) (4,676)
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approximately $3,865,000) and is repayable
within 3 months.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ~ 21. &8 & 3 Bk 2 Wk (49)
(Continued)
b. Analysis of changes in financing of the Phoenix Group: b. il ¢ 55 ) 2
2001 2000
SRR TERLAE
Share Share  Minority
capital premium  interests Total Total
2 BB
JBeAR B ik Hl 2 25t i
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T # i T # i T # T # i T T
Beginning of year LE) 484,706 750,859 7,753 1,243,318 502,977
Proceeds from placement
shares U = = = = 706,702
Proceeds from public
offering shares 7 B B I U 4 = = = = 78,523
Proceeds from exercise
of over-allotment 7 2 P
of shares & 8,391 82,230 - 90,621 —
Share options exercised 1 & 47 i
by employees i e 62 611 - 673 —
Over-allotment, T A5F 8 T A
placements and public it/ & 24 BH
offering expenses paid £ B 2 - (8,996) - (8,996) (52,637)
Capital contributions from
minority shareholders > 8l 3t ¥ - - 1,000 1,000 8,160
Minority shareholders’ > #{j
share of results JRE {15 2 4% - = (3,734) (3,734) (407)
End of year A4 493,159 824,704 5,019 1,322,882 1,243,318
c. Analysis of the components of cash and cash c. BRI EFMZ 2 H
equivalents:
Phoenix Group
JR 4
2001 2000
SRR TERLAE
$°000 $°000
T # i T 7T
Cash and bank balances Bl 4 K SRAT A7 3K 665,403 770,316
Short term bank loan, secured (Note i) &8 4R 47 6 5% — K4 (7F1) (779) =
664,624 770,316
i The short term bank loan is secured by bank i. A R A7 £ 5K LA 500,000
deposits of US$500,000 (equivalent to 3 T Z ST A AR 2 AR

(%9 4H 55 it 3,865,000 5
J6) o MR =AEA Z A

=3



22, COMMITMENTS
Film rights and programme acquisition

a.

As at June 30, 2001, the Phoenix Group had aggregate
outstanding film rights and programmes related
commitments of approximately $163,664,000 (2000 —
$208,960,000) of which approximately $158,783,000
(2000 — $203,129,000) was in respect of a film rights
acquisition agreement with STAR TV Filmed
Entertainment Limited extending to August 27,2008 and
approximately $4,881,000 (2000 — $5,831,000) was in
respect of other programme acquisition agreements with
third parties. Total film rights and programmes related

commitments are analysed as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements MFs &M | @

Jilk L 56 5 U HE K o H N RE

W FEE—4FENHA=1TH > B
BAR A B R R R RE & BB
HEW fr BAT R IERBL 5
163,664,00070 ( & EEAF
208,960,0007C) > & &
158,783,00070 ( & BEA4F
203,129,0007C) J7 A B HLSTAR
TV Filmed Entertainment Limited
Sl 0 B TR R RRE I o
Rt E —FENFENH
+-EH > 7 #4,881,0000C (—F
FTEZAE 1 5,831,00070) A A B HL
5 = 7 AR ET R B R CHth B B Y
Jix HE 15 % o A R A B TR S hRME
J 6 B RRRE (0 7R A8 o A A R

Phoenix Group

JR L 4
2001 2000
SRR 4 TERLAE
$°000 $°000
T # i T i#soT
Total committed purchase costs
of film rights and ESHV a7
programmes payable: VEIRENTE
— not later than one year — RN —4F 24,559 28,004
— later than one year and — B — 4 E
not later than five years AR AR 91,187 110,865
— later than five years — BN AR 47,918 70,091
163,664 208,960
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22. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

b.

72

Service charges

As at June 30, 2001, the Phoenix Group had a total
committed service charges payable to Satellite Television
Asian Region Limited of approximately $112,485,000
(2000 — $167,758,000) in respect of a service agreement
expiring on June 30, 2003. Total committed service
charges payable to Satellite Television Asian Region
Limited is analysed as follows:

2222

RYE (4

b. It 5 ¢
N_FEE—FEANA=Z1TH - BELE
B T AN H =1 H JE W
¥4 R 365 Tih e JE A T 4 R TR AL RS
B s 4 4 35 49112,485,0000T (=
FEFEF  167,758,00070) © 5 AL
i 7 Satellite Television Asian Region
Limited# IR % & A A A a0 T -

Phoenix Group

DR 4
2001 2000
SRR AR CEERAF
$°000 $°000
T # 7 T 0
Total committed service 2R E AT 2 IR 2 A
charges payable:

— not later than one year — N —4F 55,913 55,273

— later than one year and — B — 4 E
not later than five years SRR HAF 56,572 112,485
— later than five years — BN T A - -
112,485 167,758

As at June 30, 2001, the Phoenix Group had a committed
service charges payable to Fox News Network L.L.C. of
approximately $11,540,000 (2000 — Nil) in respect of a
service agreement expiring on July 25, 2004. Total
committed service charges payable to Fox News Network
L.L.C. is analysed as follows:

R FEE—AESNA = H o BJASE E IR
A = FZ AL H = A H JE R
5 1 % JE f5F T Fox News Network L.L.C.
1 IR s 4 4 35 4711,540,000 70 (—F BE
o ME) o TR T Fox News
Network L.L.C.HJ R %5 % 4> #r an 1 -

Phoenix Group

DAL 4
2001 2000
SRR AR CEEERAF
$°000 $°000
T # 7 T 0
Total committed service 2R E AT 2 IR 2 A
charges payable:
— not later than one year — RN —4F 3,420 =
— later than one year and — B — 4 E
not later than five years AR AR 8,120 =
— later than five years — BN T4 - -
11,540 —



22. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

C.

Office premises rental

As at June 30, 2001, the Phoenix Group had total
committed office premises rental payable to Satellite
Television Asian Region Limited of approximately
$13,010,000 (2000 — $20,394,000) in respect of a licence
expiring on July 14, 2003. Total committed office
premises rental payable to Satellite Television Asian
Region Limited is analysed as follows:
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22. 7RI H)

C.

WAEPEAE

R EE—HFEANA=1TH B
JAAE B —H N =4
AU H JEW 2 FFR o KR
o A A BR A A AT IR A
13,010,0007G (= & & L4 ¢
20,394,00070) Z HEN E Y EM
% o T F Satellite Television
Asian Region Limitedf) 55 7 18 fll
B HTIR

Phoenix Group

JB 4
2001 2000
SRR TERLAE
$°000 $°000
T # i T oT
Total committed office premises
rental payable: FR AT 2N FREA A
— not later than one year — RN —4F 6,372 7,384
— later than one year and — B — 4 E
not later than five years AR AR 6,638 13,010
— later than five years — BN T A - -
13,010 20,394

Funding commitment

Pursuant to a conditional agreement signed on July 11,
1999, the Group has committed to provide funding of
not less than US$8,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
$64,932,000) to PCNE for three years starting from
August 1999 with annual funding of not less than
US$2,800,000 (equivalent to approximately $21,644,000)
in the form of an unsecured, interest-free loan with no
fixed term of repayment. As described in Note 16, the
Group has provided funding of approximately
US$5,316,000 (equivalent to approximately $41,093,000)
as of June 30, 2001. As at June 30, 2001, the remaining
funding commitment was therefore approximately
$23,839,000.

R I
Wk — LI FE LA +—H
T %% 2 B A R I ke > JBLJRL
W R B — JUILILE A R
wH B = 4F A & PONESR it R D it
8,400,000 J& (& M % ©
64,932,000%70) & 4 > HEE
4 FH A D ik 2,800,000 JT (&) A
4 77h21,644,00085TC) © Z LG E 4
DL IR A~ A S O I [ o R K
W2 S Rt - SRR 1600
o WE _EFE—HFEANH =T
H ik > AREERMAE T 45,316,000
3 0 (40 % A 41,093,000% J0)
&4 o Mt > BT 4
NH O MR ZEEREL R
23,839,000 4% JC ©
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2202

74

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

€.

Operating lease

As at June 30, 2001, the Phoenix Group had rental
commitments of approximately $11,774,000 (2000 —
$1,512,000) in respect of a Director’s quarter and a
production centre under various operating leases
extending to September 2002. Total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases
are analysed as follows:

2222

R (A7)

e.

MBMLH

W FEE—4FENHA=1TH > B
BEAR AR PR E R A K2 IH
HEHREPLENE FTFE
LA ZEBEMEY ARHD
11,774,000 70 (& B EZAF
1,512,00070) Y FHL & 7 38 o MR 9%
ANETRERR M R4 » AR
8 LA AR AR I A% 2 A 4 43 B
T

Phoenix Group

DR 4
2001 2000
SRR CEEERAF
$°000 $°000
T # 7 T 0
Total future minimum lease
payments payable: FR AT 2N FREA A
— not later than one year — RN —4F 5,128 907
— later than one year and — B — 4 E
not later than five years AR AR 6,646 605
— later than five years — BN T A - -
11,774 1,512
Land use right f. - 4 i B

Pursuant to an agreement entered into on June 11, 2001
between a subsidiary of the Company and % JIl T #1 &
+ & (The Shenzhen National Land Planning Bureau),
the Phoenix Group has committed to pay a final balance
of approximately $28,177,000 no later than June 13, 2003
to obtain a land use right in Shenzhen, the PRC (Note
15).

WHE®R = FF—4FAH —H
AN ) 2z — B JE A B I
TR B bR AR E 2 Rk o R
[ SR el R e oz L )
RE > R GE R DI T A B B R
RAREIN _EF=FH+=
H » 3 AF 435 28,177,000% o0 2
B (B 5E15) -



22. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
Other operating and capital commitments

8.

As at June 30, 2001, the Phoenix Group had the following
additional significant operating and capital

commitments:
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22. 7RI H)
JC il 58 45 B Y A TR S

RE-EE—FSA=Z+TH > B
JE S T 1 A G0 R HG A T AR

g.

o B AR

Total future minimum
payments payable
AR AT AT
I 1% 4 AL

Later than one year

Not later than and not later than Total
Details of commitments Payee one year five years Commitment
A i — 4
—4E A R Y T4
RN XA M XA R
$°000 $°000 $°000
T T T
Purchase of computer hardware Jo s R R
N LR BRAREMAAF 2,001 - 2,001
Leasing of space capacity from Cable & Wireless
International Telecommunications HKTT Limited
Satellite Organisation
(“INTELSAT”)
] International
Telecommunications
Satellite Organisation
(TINTELSAT])
HmwEmEs 1,459 - 1,459
Provision of news and The Associated Press
data services Television News Ltd.
00 1M e SR 414 694 1,108
Provision of programme RAREREEERE
production services B A A R
SR A 0 H AR 4,645 - 4,645
Provision of sports news services Sports News
2 (6 50 I A Television - 1,181 1,181
Provision of market datafeed Stock Exchange
services Information
Services Limited
1 ki 05 B Ak Fil a2 h 0
LYY U 2 ) 1,000 1,417 2,417
9,519 3,292 12,811
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255

76

PENSION SCHEME ARRANGEMENT
The Phoenix Group operates two defined contribution schemes.
The employees are eligible to participate in either scheme.

The Phoenix Group provides a defined contribution
provident fund scheme for all employees and makes
monthly contribution to the scheme based on 10% of
the employees’ basic salaries. Forfeited contributions
made by the Phoenix Group are used to reduce the
employer’s contribution. For the financial year ended
June 30, 2001, the aggregate amounts of employer’s
contribution made by the Phoenix Group were
approximately $5,581,000 (2000 — $3,479,000). For the
financial year ended June 30, 2001, the total amount of
forfeited contributions, which are available to reduce
the contributions payable by the Phoenix Group in
future years, was approximately $554,000 (2000 —
$370,000).

The assets of the scheme are held separately from those
of the Phoenix Group and are managed by independent
professional fund managers.

Since December 1, 2000, the employees in Hong Kong
can elect to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme was introduced
pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation
introduced during the year. Under the MPF Scheme,
the Phoenix Group and each of the employees make
monthly contribution to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation.

Both the employer’s and the employees’ contribution
are subject to a cap of monthly earning of $20,000 for
each employee. For those employees with monthly
earnings less than $4,000, the employees’ contributions
are voluntary.

During the year, the aggregate amount of employer’s
contributions made by the Phoenix Group to the MPF
Scheme was approximately $607,000.

23.

BAK 4wl 3% PE
TR S 35 L A 8 - 0
2 5 I b — S

= NN

R4 B A T A R B3R it 2 AR
BB AR &8 - & A K
Byl B FEAH N 19 10% o IR i
B B L A A4t R T DA e A O
EHfR o  HEFE—FEN
A=+ H I MEFE > BEE
1 0 I T AL Ry 28 AE £ A
5,581,000%% JT (. FFE T4
3,479,000%5 JB) ° B E _FTE —
FERNAZTH IR BUERE >
& W I Y 8 AR 2 £ 554,000 5
g6 (ZFEEEF 370,000
J6) > Hok DA s A B R 4R E AE
A&t R o

AN R B G ) B R R
] (1 & o B i B SIF B L
B & T o

M oEEREES H—HH#
F s IR B o] B4R A A
B4 shd (MmAEsrE]) -
T 4wl #7948 0 R 4 ik R
EREME o AR R4 R AR A k)
FTHA 2 A A wh# o RURUSE M
EERESAHZMHKEREA
B 5% o

fé £ K g B W & 2 it 3k 5 %
20,0009 T A & EEFH AR Z
LR HZZEESEHARDR
4,000% 7C > B B Z Btk 8 A
JE e o

AER > R BN SE AR 4 O A 4
AT A 0 E I R AR A
#5607,000%E IC ©



24.

Notes to the Financial Statements MFs &M |

UNAUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF PCNE 24.
The summary of the unaudited financial results of PCNE for
the year ended June 30, 2001 and the eighteen-month period

ended June 30, 2000 is as follows:

For the year ended
June 30, 2001

PCNER £ % B 2 W % &k

BEETEANASHIFEERE
Z o BEEENH =4 H I+ E A B
[ > PCNER 4 1% 2 %4 M ak n F

For the period from
January 1, 1999
to June 30, 2000

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
— NI FE—H—H
BE_ZF AN B R TTAE
=+ H kL4 ANH=1HIE#HM
(o 58 8% (R 5 58 4%)
£ $°000 £ $°000
5B T #5 g F it o
TURNOVER WA 801,247 9,115 777,788 9,776
OPERATING LOSS 8 1 (1,674,198) (19,045) (2,756,015) (34,624)
OTHER INCOME H Al A
(EXPENSES), NET (BH) TH 7,321 83 (154,107) (1,936)
LOSS BEFORE B B Wil s 41 (1,666,877) (18,962) (2,910,122) (36,560)
TAXATION
TAXATION B - - - -
NET LOSS FOR iy g R
THE YEAR/PERIOD (1,666,877) (18,962) (2,910,122) (36,560)

The summarized unaudited financial positions of PCNE as at

June 30, 2001 and 2000 is as follows:

HME_EE-FANHA=ZTHE_ZEEE
FNH =1 HIEEE > PCNEAR K %1%

2 W IR A A 0 R
As at June 30, 2001 As at June 30, 2000
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
R -4EANH=TH W _EEEFENH=ZTH
T3 £.93 (R K8 8 4%)
£ $°000 £ $°000
ES ] T # 7 g T # T
FIXED ASSETS [l %€ ¥ B 101,170 1,120 171,588 1,970
NET CURRENT 2 92
ASSETS (LIABILITIES) (£ 1) ¥ % 29,252 324 (1,919,466) (22,039)
LONG-TERM
LIABILITIES B0 fE (14,673,450) (162,464) (9,817,940) (112,730)
NET LIABILITIES £ 15 5 # (14,543,028) (161,020) (11,565,818) (132,799)
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UNAUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF PCNE
(Continued)

The Hong Kong dollar unaudited financial results and the
financial positions for the year ended and as at June 30, 2001
have been translated from Sterling Pounds solely for
convenience at HK$11.38 = GBP1.00 (2000 — HK$12.57 =
GBP1.00) and HK$11.07 = GBP1.00 (2000 — HK$11.48 =
GBP1.00) respectively. No representation is made that the
Sterling Pounds amounts could have been, or could be,
converted into Hong Kong dollars at those rates or any other
certain rates.

Included in the long-term liabilities as at June 30, 2001 is a
loan from Techvast Limited, the existing shareholder of PCNE,
of approximately $121,371,000. Management verbally agreed
with Techvast Limited that, immediately before the completion
of the acquisition of PCNE, the loan from Techvast Limited
will be capitalised as issued ordinary share capital of PCNE.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the 2000 comparative figures have been reclassified
to conform to the current year’s presentation. The major
reclassifications involved the presentation of certain affiliated
company charges from selling, general and administrative
expenses to operating expenses and the reclassification of an
amount due from a related company from current asset to non-
current asset.
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A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the

Financial Summary %% | @

JUEVSE B 2 LT % SR AR R e B AR S

Phoenix Group is set out below: o
RESULTS %45
Year ended June 30,
BREANH=Z1THIL4EE
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
ZREAMAE R ERRE —JULLE —LIUNE — UL
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T # 1 T or RN + o + o
Revenue e A 713,687 511,342 314,663 174,805 119,536
Operating expenses Ft = | (536,304) (372,444) (270,380) (190,753) (189,091)
Selling, general and g — kK
administrative expenses TECE (175,911) (98,130) (132,264) (117,415) (92,123)
Profit (Loss) from operations K& wA (E8R) 1,472 40,768 (87,981) (133,363) (161,678)
Other income, net Al e AV B 50,386 9,140 9,515 2,258 6,142
Profit (Loss) before taxation and  F&Bi & 2 i ik 5
minority interests HE 75 1T Y ) 51,858 49,908 (78,466) (131,105) (155,536)
(5 1H)
Taxation i 5 (1,608) = = = =
Profit (Loss) before minority I 2D S e R A
interests I s A1 (s 15) 50,250 49,908 (78,466) (131,105) (155,536)
Minority interests D By i R 4 3,734 407 = = =
Profit (Loss) attributable to JI R A Vi )
shareholders (5 18) 53,984 50,315 (78,466) (131,105) (155,536)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES Ve ) &K
As at June 30,
AANH=+H
2001 2000 1999
ZREAE R ERTF — JLILJL A
$°000 $2000 $2000
T #C T # 75 F # 7T
Current assets i B G 977,146 989,296 181,245
Non-current assets IF i B A 185,941 44,639 19,041
Total assets % J 1,163,087 1,033,935 200,286
Current liabilities i B A 141,731 146,379 103,386
Non-current liabilities ER= i 252 = 502,977
Minority interests D By i R 4 5,019 7,753 =
Shareholders’ equity (deficit) R MR (5HR) 1,016,085 879,803 (406,077)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ A K i R £
equity (deficit) (k5 18) 1,163,087 1,033,935 200,286
The results of the Phoenix Group for the years ended June 30, 1997, HE—NLILEE - —LIUNE - —LILILEAS

1998 and 1999, and the balance sheet as at June 30, 1999 have been
extracted from the Prospectus and prepared on a continued basis as if
the Phoenix Group, which was established as a result of the Group
Reorganization completed on June 16, 2000, had been in existence
since July 1, 1996 and throughout the accounting periods presented.
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